
 
DESERT WATER AGENCY     BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
AUGUST 18, 2015                                                                  REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 GENE AUTRY TRAIL SOUTH – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  July 21, 2015  EWING                        

                                 
3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   LUKER 

 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS –   Executive – August 7, 2015         EWING  
                 
5. PUBLIC INPUT:  

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda. 
 

6. ITEMS FOR ACTION  
 A. Request Approval and Support of ACWA Region 9 Nominating Committee’s   EWING 
  Recommended Slate for 2015-2016 Term 
 
 B. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1121 Supporting the Nomination of Director Tiegs  EWING 
  as the Association of California Water Agencies President 

 
C. Request Authorization for General Manager to Sign MOU between CVRWMG for  RUARK  
 Implementation of the Prop 84 Coachella Valley Regional Turf Reduction Program 
 
D. Request Board Action Regarding Director Attendance at ACWA Region 9 Event  EWING 
 

7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   
A. July Water Production Comparison  LUKER 
B. State Water Contractors’ Meeting – July 16, 2015  RIDDELL 
C. Directors’ Report on NWRA Conference                                                                                      STUART, OBERHAUS 

 
8. PUBLIC INFORMATION 
 A. Media Information 
 B. PI Activities 

 
9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION 

 
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
   
11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
12. ADJOURN 

 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8563 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 07/21/15 

 

                                                            2 
   MINUTES   

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
July 21, 2015 

 
DWA Board: Craig A. Ewing, President ) 
 James Cioffi, Vice President   )         
 Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
 Richard Oberhaus, Director ) 
 
DWA Staff: David K. Luker, General Manager ) 
 Mark S. Krause, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Irene Gaudinez, Human Resources Manager ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary to the Board ) 
 Katie Ruark, Public Information Officer ) 
 Steve Johnson, Operations Engineer )   
  
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 
Public: Roy Wilton, Mission Lakes Country Club ) 
       

Attendance 

17212.  President Ewing opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Director Oygar in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
17213.  President Ewing called for approval of the July 7, 2015 
Regular Board meeting minutes. Director Oberhaus requested an 
amendment to Page 8556, section 17199. 
 
  Director Oygar moved for approval noting the amendment. 
After a second by Director Oberhaus, the minutes were approved as 
amended. 
   
17214.  President Ewing called upon General Manager Luker to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Luker reported that DWA crews have installed 
approximately 670 L.F. of 8” ductile iron pipe along East Palm Canyon in 
front of the Horizon Mobile Village. He explained that this section of 
pipeline has experienced numerous leaks in the past 12 months. The work 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 07/07/15 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Horizon Mobile Village 
 
 
 
 



8564 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 07/21/15 

 
included relocating one fire hydrant and one 4” water service. 
 
  Mr. Luker stated on July 1, the developer started site grading 
again and is expected to have all streets to subgrade by the end of July. 
DWA’s contractor, Jones Bros. is scheduled to start installation of 
approximately 4,500 L.F. of 16” transmission pipeline on August 3. 64 
residents within the Janis Tuscany area have been notified by either 
certified letter, non-certified letter, or email that their property will 
experience an increase in pressure and will require a pressure regulator. The 
notification letter asks for their permission to have Agency crews install a 
pressure regulator on their property. Of the 64, 29 have given permission, 
the remaining 35 have not responded. Staff will continue to contact the 35 
residents. Staff has ordered pressure regulators for the property owners that 
have given their permission and anticipate starting the installation at the 
beginning of August. 
 
  Mr. Luker reported that Green Towne Inc. has completed all 
work in the amount of $77,842 with one change of $880 for unforeseen 
electrical wiring and speaker wiring relocation work, for a total of $78,722. 
Green Towne along with their subcontractors performed in a professional 
manner, which was greatly appreciated by staff. 
  
  Concluding his report, Mr. Luker stated on July 15 at 8:50 
a.m., a two-inch double check backflow device on a construction meter was 
stolen from the northwest corner of Golf Club Dr. and 34th Ave. 
 
  President Ewing informed staff that the Board is available to 
help notify Janis Tuscany customers regarding pressure regulators. 
   
17215.  President Ewing noted the minutes for the July 15, 2015 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. He noted a 
possible lack of quorum for the August 4 meeting; therefore, the next 
regular meeting will be held on August 18. 
 
17216.  President Ewing asked Secretary-Treasurer Stuart to provide 
an overview of financial activities for the month of June 2015. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Stuart reported that the Operating Fund 
received $1,937,238 in Water Sales Revenue and $167,592 in Reclamation 
Sales Revenue. $220,836 was received in Advanced Construction Deposits 
($182,836 from Wessman (Desert Fashion Plaza) and $38,000 from 
Tahquitz 41, LLC (Vibrante Tract). Included in the Miscellaneous Receipts 
is $15,036 from SCE for the energy rebate from Solar Field II for May 
2015. $2,004,148 was paid out in Accounts Payable. He noted that Year-to-
date statistics for revenues and expenses would be provided at the 
conclusion of the 2014/2015 audit. There were 22,126 active services 

General Manager’s 
Report (Cont.) 
 
Desert Palisade Project  
Janis Tuscany Pressure 
Regulators 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Interior Office Remodel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Committee Reports –  
Executive 07/15/15 
 
 
 
 

 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report – June 2015 

 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8565 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 07/21/15 

 
compared to 21,121 from May 2015. 
   
  Regarding the General Fund, Secretary-Treasurer Stuart said 
$205,506 was received in Property Tax Revenues, $224,848 was received 
from CVWD per the water management agreement for January thru April 
2015, and $560,811 was received in State Water Project Refunds. Included 
in the Miscellaneous category is $25,000 from the Wastewater Fund for 
principal payment #15 of the capital improvement loan ($6,201.30 in 
interest is in the interest earned category). $1,026,657 was paid out in 
Accounts Payable. 
 
  Reporting on the Wastewater Fund, Secretary-Treasurer 
Stuart stated that $19,905 was received in Sewer Contract payments. There 
were 2 contracts paid in full in June, with a total of 84 contracts (35 
delinquent). $105,612 was paid out in Accounts Payable. 
 
17217.  President Ewing opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Ewing closed the public comment period. 
 
17218.  President Ewing called upon Public Information Officer 
Ruark to provide a report on the Turf Buyback Program Changes. 
 
  Ms. Ruark stated that staff recommends changes to the 
program to increase efficiency and reduce staff time. She noted the 
following recommendations: 1) HOA’s will now have their own category; 
2) Deadlines have changed by category, residential 90 days with the 
opportunity for one extension, 180 days for all other categories; 3) 30 day 
application cut off. She noted there were some logistical changes also. 
 
  Discussion ensured regarding the anticipated launch date for 
the program. 
 
  Responding to Director Oberhaus, Agency Counsel Riddell 
stated even though this item is listed as discussion, the Board can take 
action on it. 
 
  Director Oberhaus made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommended changes to the Turf Buy Back program. After a second by 
Vice President Cioffi, the motion passed unanimously. 
   
 
 
 
 

Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (Cont.) 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Discussion: 
Turf Buyback Program 
Changes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8566 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 07/21/15 

 
17219.  President Ewing called upon Public Information Officer 
Ruark to provide a report on the June 2015 Water Use Reduction Figures. 
 
  Ms. Ruark reported that DWA and its customers achieved a 
40 percent reduction in total water production for June 2015 compared to 
June 2013 (the baseline used by the State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB) to measure statewide conservation achievements. She noted the 
information that is reported to the SWRCB on a monthly basis. 
 
  In response to President Ewing, Ms. Ruark indicated there is 
minimal staff follow up for water violations due to the customer resolving 
the issue. 
 
  Responding to President Ewing, Mr. Luker explained that the 
fresh water outflow is indicated on the report to reflect the water outflow to 
the ocean for the month in comparison to water production. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Stuart expressed his interest on the 
outflow and requested that it continue to be reported on a monthly basis. 
  
17220.  At 8:41 a.m., President Ewing convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of (A) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. 
Coachella Valley Water District, et al, and (B) Existing Litigation, pursuant 
to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) Agua Caliente Band of 
Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al. 
   
17221.  At 9:29 a.m., President Ewing reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
   
17222.  In the absence of any further business, President Ewing 
adjourned the meeting at 9:30 a.m.  
 

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         Craig A. Ewing, President                                 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer 

Discussion Items: 
(Cont.) 
 
June 2015 Water Use 
Reduction Figures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et al 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County, et al 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2015 
  
 

On July 25 at approximately 10:00 a.m. staff responded to a hit fire hydrant at 39310 Juan Circle. 
This was a hit and run. The water loss was through a two inch hole for approximately thirty 
minutes.  Staff turned the valve off and made the necessary repairs. A police report was made.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

On July 26 at approximately 9:00 a.m. staff received a no water call at 67555 East Palm Canyon 
Dr. The customer said that the backflow was gone and appeared to be stolen. Staff let the 
customer know that DWA could replace the backflow and they would be charged. At that time the 
customer did not want us to replace the backflow, but it has since been replaced by the customer. 
A police report was made.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 

On July 30 at approximately 4:39 a.m. stand-by responded to a hit backflow at 2300 S. Palm Cyn. 
Dr. Repairs have been made and the backflow is back in service. A police report was made and 
the water loss was metered.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Update on pipeline leaks: 
Since July 1, 2015 (42 days) to August 11, there have been 76 water main leaks and 42 1 & 2 
inch water service leaks. 
Staff is working on a presentation for a future Board meeting to demonstrate increasing leak 
frequency and pipeline replacement necessities in years to come. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4  
Minutes 

Executive Committee Meeting 
August 7, 2015 

 
 

Directors Present: Craig Ewing, Jim Cioffi      
Staff Present: Dave Luker, Mark Krause, Martin Krieger 
   Linda Devlin (Consultant) 
 
1. Discussion Items 

 

A. Review Agenda for August 18, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 
The proposed agenda for the August 18, 2015 Regular Board meeting was reviewed. 
 

B. ACWA & ACWA Region 9 Elections 
 The Committee reviewed the request from Cucamonga Valley Water District for 

support of Director Tiegs bid for ACWA President. It was recommended that a 
resolution in support of Ms. Tiegs be placed on the August 18, 2015 Board agenda. 

 

 The Committee also reviewed ACWA Region 9’s Nominating Committee’s slate for the 
2015-2016. It was recommended that the Board support the recommendations and 
place a request for approval on the August 18, 2015 Board agenda. 

 

C. ACWA Region 9 Event 
 The Committee and staff discussed the September 18, 2015 Region 9 event to be held 

at the Inland Empire Utilities Agency. Staff was requested to place this item for 
consideration on the August 18, 2015 Board agenda. 

 

D. Expense Reports 
 The July expense reports were reviewed. 
 

E. 2014-2015 Audit 
 The Committee discussed with Ms. Devlin the new GASB No. 68 reporting 

requirements and due to a delay by CalPERS, this will result in delaying the 
completion of the audit. 

 

 The Committee also discussed Director expense reporting. 
   

 2. Other  
 
  A. Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA)   
   Local groundwater basin conditions were discussed.  
            
 3. Adjourn 

 



6-A 

 
Board/Memos/DKL 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
AUGUST 18, 2015 

 
RE: REQUEST APPROVAL AND SUPPORT OF ACWA REGION 9 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION SLATE FOR 
2015-2016 TERM 

 
The Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) Nominating Committee issued a 
call for nominations for Region 9 leadership. The Committee is seeking candidates for 
region officer and board member positions who are interested in leading the direction of 
ACWA for the 2015-2016 term. 
 
Leadership of the ten geographical ACWA regions is integral to the leadership of the 
Association as a whole. Members of the Region 9 board determine the direction and 
focus of regional issues and activities, and support ACWA’s goals on behalf of its 
members. 
 
Attached is the recommended slate by the Nomination Committee. Recommendation for 
Chair is G. Patrick O’Dowd (Coachella Valley Water District); Vice Chair is Harvey R. 
Ryan (Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District); and Board Members are: Steven Farrell 
(Crestline Village Water District), Joseph J. Kuebler (Eastern Municipal Water District), 
Mary Ann Melleby (San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency), James Morales Jr. (East Valley 
Water District), and James Ventura, Jr. (Mojave Water Agency). 
 
Staff requests that the Board approve the recommendations and authorize the Board 
President to complete and submit the Agency’s ballot by September 30, 2015. 



2016-2017
Term

Please return completed ballot 
by September 30, 2015

E-mail: anat@acwa.com
Mail: ACWA  

910 K Street, Suite 100 
Sacramento, CA 95814

General Voting 
Instructions: 

1  You may either vote for 
the slate recommended by 
the Region 9 Nominating 
Committee or vote for 
individual region board 
members (please note rules 
& regulations for specific 
qualifications). Mark the 
appropriate box to indicate 
your decision.

2  Complete your agency 
information. The authorized 
representative is deter-
mined by your agency in ac-
cordance with your agency’s 
policies and procedures. 

Region 9 Rules & 
Regulations:
The chair and vice chair shall be 
elected, one from each area, and 
the positions shall be rotated 
between the Western and Arid 
areas of Region 9.

OffIcIal

Region 9 Board Ballot
1

Nominating committee’s Recommended Slate
 I concur with the Region 9 Nominating Committee’s recommended slate 

below.

chair: 
•	 G. Patrick O’Dowd, Board Member, Coachella Valley Water District (Arid)

Vice chair: 
•	 Harvey R. Ryan, Board Member, Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District 

(Western)

Board Members:
•	 Steven farrell, Director, Crestline Village Water District
•	 Joseph J. Kuebler, Board Member, Eastern Municipal Water District
•	 Mary ann Melleby, Director, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency
•	 James Morales Jr., Chairman of the Board, East Valley Water District
•	 James Ventura Jr., Director, Mojave Water Agency

OR

Individual Board candidate Nominations 
(See Rules & Regulations before selecting)

 I do not concur with the Region 9 Nominating Committee’s recommended 
slate. I will vote for individual candidates below as indicated.

candidates for chair: (choose one)
 G. Patrick O’Dowd, Board Member, Coachella Valley Water District (Arid)

candidates for Vice chair: (choose one)
 Joseph J. Kuebler, Board Member, Eastern Municipal Water District 

(Western)
 James Morales Jr., Chairman of the Board, East Valley Water District 

(Western)
 Harvey R. Ryan, Board Member, Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District 

(Western)

candidates for Board Members: (Max of 5 choices)
 Steven farrell, Director, Crestline Village Water District
 Joseph J. Kuebler, Board Member, Eastern Municipal Water District
 Mary ann Melleby, Director, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency
 James Morales Jr., Chairman of the Board, East Valley Water District
 G. Patrick O’Dowd, Board Member, Coachella Valley Water District

 Harvey R. Ryan, Board Member, Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District
 James Ventura Jr., Director, Mojave Water Agency

AGENCY NAME

AuThoRIzED REPRESENTATIVE DATE

2



Memos/dkl 08 18 15 reso 1121  - support nomin kathie tiegs acwa staffreport.docx  

6-B 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
AUGUST 18, 2015 

 
 
 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1121 SUPPORTING  
 THE NOMINATION OF DIRECTOR TIEGS TO THE OFFICE OF  
 PRESIDENT OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER 

AGENCIES (ACWA) 
 
 
Attached for the Board’s consideration is Resolution No. 1121, which supports  
the nomination of Kathleen Tiegs, Director of the Cucamonga Valley Water 
District and current Vice-President of ACWA, to the office of President of ACWA.  
Also attached is a copy Ms. Tieg’s bio.  
 
At the August 7, 2015 Executive Committee meeting, there was support of Ms. 
Tieg’s nomination as President of ACWA. 
 
If the Board concurs in the nomination of Ms. Tiegs to the position of ACWA 
President, it may do so by adopting Resolution No. 1121. Following adoption, 
staff will forward a copy of the resolution to Cucamonga Valley Water District and 
ACWA offices.  
 
 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO.  1121  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

SUPPORTING THE NOMINATION OF KATHLEEN TIEGS 
AS THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA  
WATER AGENCIES (ACWA)  PRESIDENT 

 
  WHEREAS, the Desert Water Agency is a member of the Association of 
California Water Agencies (ACWA) and is actively interested that the policies and operations of 
ACWA continue to provide solutions and services necessary to the efficient operation of this 
Agency and all water agencies in California; and 
   
  WHEREAS, Kathleen has served as a member of the Cucamonga Valley Water 
District since 2005; current Vice President of ACWA; currently serves as Chair of the 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act; and 
 
  WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Desert Water Agency and all member 
agencies of ACWA to have the most qualified Directors serve as officers of ACWA; 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Desert Water Agency, it does hereby support the nomination of Kathleen Tiegs to the office of 
President of the Association of California Water Agencies. 
 
  ADOPTED this 18th day of August, 2015. 
 
    
 
        ______________________________ 
        Craig A. Ewing, President 

Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 
 









6-C 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
AUGUST 18, 2015 

 
 

RE: AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING AMONGST THE COACHELLA VALLEY REGIONAL 
WATER MANAGEMENT GROUP FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
PROPOSITION 84 COACHELLA VALLEY REGIONAL TURF 
REDUCTION PROGRAM 

 

The five water agencies that make up the Coachella Valley Regional Water 
Management Group (CVRWMG) applied for a conservation grant during the Proposition 
84 Round 3 Solicitation which would provide Turf Buy Back Funding for all of the water 
agencies in the group.  The CVRWMG water agencies have been awarded a total of 
$4.87 million for turf buy back. 

DWA’s portion of the grant is $1.29 million in grants (which will need to be supported by 
funding match upfront, $502,948).  DWA’s Turf Buy Back program was written 
specifically to address state grant funding match criteria.  The inclusion of customer-
paid costs was intentional in order to account for real project expenses which can be 
included as grant funding match.  The amount of funding match we have documented 
far exceeds what will be necessary for us in Proposition 84, however we have pursued 
and will continue to pursue other grant opportunities, therefore DWA will only submit to 
the State what is necessary in order to meet the funding match requirements.  Should 
we be awarded another State grant, we will continue to have funding match available. 

Indio Water Authority (IWA) will be the grant administrator and has already executed a 
contract with the State of California Department of Water Resources.  Three of the 
CVRWMG Agencies have signed the attached Memorandum of Understanding to 
administer the grant.  IWA will be presenting it to their City Council for approval 
tomorrow (August 19, 2015).  If approved today, DWA will wait to execute the MOU until 
IWA approves it. 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Staff requests conditional approval to authorize the General Manager to sign a 
Memorandum of Understanding amongst the Coachella Valley Regional Water 
Management Group for implementation of the Proposition 84 Coachella Valley Regional 
Turf Reduction Program.  The General Manager will not sign the MOU unless all five of 
the Agencies’ governing bodies have approved it. 



 1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
among 

CITY OF COACHELLA/COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, COACHELLA VALLEY 
WATER DISTRICT, DESERT WATER AGENCY, CITY OF INDIO/INDIO WATER 

AUTHORITY, and MISSION SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
for 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE COACHELLA VALLEY REGIONAL TURF REDUCTION 
PROGRAM 

 
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) dated August 13, 2015, is entered into among the 
City Of Coachella/Coachella Water Authority, Coachella Valley Water District, Desert Water 
Agency, City Of Indio/Indio Water Authority, and Mission Springs Water District (collectively 
known as Partners) for the purpose of implementing the Coachella Valley Regional Turf 
Reduction Program activities undertaken by the Partners. 
 
WHEREAS, each Partner is a party to an MOU as amended dated September 9, 2008, for 
development of an Integrated Regional Water Management Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Coachella Valley Regional Water Management Group (“CVRWMG”) 
authorized the Indio Water Authority (“IWA”) as the “Grant Administrator” for the Proposition 
84 Integrated Regional Water Management  2014 Drought Grant (“Drought Grant”);  
 
WHEREAS, the Department of Water Resources of the State of California (“Department of 
Water Resources”) has provided Drought Grant funding (“Drought Grant”) and IWA has been 
designated as Grant Administrator for the Proposition 84 Integrated Regional Water 
Management  2014 Drought Grant pursuant to the Agreement No. 4600010887 (“Grant 
Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, under the Grant Agreement, the Department of Water Resources has provided 
grant funding to the Partners for certain projects, namely the Coachella Valley Regional Turf 
Reduction Program  which will fund turf reduction projects within each of the Partner service 
areas, as well as funding for the administration of the turf reduction program; and  
 
WHEREAS, each Partner is a Local Project Sponsor as that term is defined in the Grant 
Agreement for the Coachella Valley Regional Turf Reduction Program (“Turf Reduction 
Program”),  the scope and budget for which are fully described in the Grant Agreement;  
 
WHEREAS, IWA has been designated as Grant Administrator for the Turf Reduction Program 
as set forth in the Grant Agreement and will administer the grant funds for the Turf Reduction 
Program pursuant to the terms of the Grant Agreement;  
 



 2 

WHEREAS, each Partner will implement the Turf Reduction Program pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of the Grant Agreement and the provisions of this MOU; and 
 
WHEREAS, this MOU shall clarify the Partners respective responsibilities with respect to the 
monies received under the Grant Agreement;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration the receipt of which is acknowledged, each 
Partner hereby agrees to as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: 
AGREEMENTS 

 
1.1 IWA, designated by the CVRWMG as the grant administrator for the Proposition 84 IRWM 

2014 Drought Grant, Agreement Number 4600010887, and shall have overall responsibility 
for executing and administering the Drought Grant as directed by the CVRWMG and 
pursuant to the terms of the Grant Agreement, which is attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Exhibit A. 

 
1.2 The Grant administration costs reimbursed to IWA shall be limited to $100,000 as described 

in EXHIBIT B Budget, Project #1 Grant Administration of the Grant Agreement.   
 
1.3 Each Partner is a Local Project Sponsor responsible for individual project management, 

oversight, compliance, operations and maintenance.  Local Project Sponsors share 
responsibility with IWA in the fulfillment of Grant Administrator responsibilities where 
specified in the Drought Grant Agreement for the purposes of project management.  The five 
Local Project Sponsors for the Coachella Valley Regional Turf Reduction Program are listed 
in the Grant Agreement as follows: 

 
• Coachella Valley Water District 
• Coachella Water Authority 
• Desert Water Agency 
• Indio Water Authority 
• Mission Springs Water District 

 
1.4 Each Partner agrees to comply with all terms, provisions and obligations contained in the 

Grant Agreement in implementing the Turf Reduction Program in their service area including 
all exhibits and attachments thereto.   
 

1.5 Each Partner shall prepare, provide and ensure the accuracy of all deliverables, reports, 
documentation, notifications, notices, and information related to the Turf Reduction Program 
as required under the Grant Agreement and/or requested by IWA to assist IWA to provide 
the information required under the Grant Agreement in a prompt and timely manner.     



 3 

 
1.6 Each Partner shall comply with all applicable environmental requirements pertaining to the 

Turf Reduction Program for their respective service area.   
 

1.7 If the Department of Water Resources determines pursuant to Section 13 of the Grant 
Agreement or any other applicable section, that a Partner is required to repay any monies that 
have been disbursed for non-compliance or that a Partner is in default of the Grant 
Agreement, that Partner shall be solely responsible for any liability, costs or expenses related 
to such action including any penalties and/or interest and such Partner shall immediately 
repay such monies to the Department of Water Resources and/or undertake any other action 
requested by the Department of Water Resources immediately or as is reasonably possible to 
ensure that the Grant Agreement is not deemed in default. 

 
1.8 Partner shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the other Partners, and their respective 

officers and employees and assigns, from any and all liability or financial loss resulting from 
any suits, claims, losses or actions, and from all cost and expenses of litigation brought 
against the other Partner(s), and their officers or employees which results directly from the 
acts or omissions of that particular Partner’s conduct in performing the work for the Turf 
Reduction Program by the Grant Agreement. 

 
1.9 The Partners agreed by consensus to the distribution of Grant funding in the Agreement on 

the condition that each Partner will use due diligence distributing the grant funding to 
customers in its agency boundaries in an expeditious manner.   To ensure that this condition 
is met, the Partners agree to do the following:  The partners will review DWR invoices on a 
quarterly basis to monitor the amount of grant funding not yet encumbered. 

 
 

a. As soon as practicable, after January 1, 2017, the partners will conduct a formal 
evaluation of funds not yet encumbered.  Any funding which has not been 
encumbered by a turf rebate application may be subject to redistribution.  

b. As soon as practicable after July 1, 2017, any funds that have not been 
encumbered will be equally available to all agencies. 

c. Any partner who receives redistributed funds will be responsible for meeting the 
match requirement associated with those funds. 

 
 

SECTION 2: 
INVOICING AND PAYMENT 

 
2.1 Each Partner shall pay their “Cost Share” as described in the Grant Agreement to implement 

the Turf Reduction Program as set program and shall submit invoices to IWA for 
reimbursement no less than quarterly.  Invoices shall comply with the requirements of the 
Grant Agreement.  
 



 4 

2.2 No less than quarterly, IWA shall  invoice the Department of Water Resources.  IWA shall  
distribute funds received from the Department of Water Resources to the Partners based on 
invoices submitted by the Partners. 
 

2.3 No Partner shall be expected to make payments for any project or program that is not in their 
service area.     

 
2.4 No Partner shall be expected to make payments for any project or program that are greater 

than their individual share of costs, without first receiving funds from each Partner sufficient 
to cover their individual share of the cost. 
 

2.5 IWA shall not be responsible for making any payments to any Partner which is not backed by 
reimbursements from the Department of Water Resources.   

 
SECTION 3: 
GENERAL 

 
3.1 This MOU shall remain in effect while the Drought Grant Agreement or any provision of the 
Drought Grant Agreement remains in effect.   
 
3.2 Any notices, invoices or reports relating to this MOU shall be delivered to each Partner at the 
address designated by such Partner in writing to one another.   
 
3.3  The validity, interpretation, and performance of this MOU shall be controlled by and 
construed under the laws of the State of California.  In the event of any asserted ambiguity in, or 
dispute regarding the interpretation of any matter herein, the interpretation of this MOU shall not 
be resolved by any rules of interpretation providing for interpretation against the party that 
causes the uncertainty to exist or against the party who drafted the MOU or who drafted that 
portion of the MOU. 
 
3.4  This MOU, and any other documents incorporated herein by specific reference, represents 
the entire and integrated agreement between the parties.  This MOU supersedes all prior oral or 
written negotiations, representations or agreements.  This MOU may not be amended, nor any 
provision or breach hereof waived, except in a writing signed by the parties which expressly 
refers to this MOU. 
 
3.5  The Partners shall not assign, transfer, or subcontract any interest in this MOU.  Any attempt 
to so assign, transfer, or subcontract any rights, duties, or obligations arising hereunder shall be 
null, void and of no effect.   
 



 5 

3.6  In the event that any party to this MOU shall commence any legal action or proceeding to 
enforce or interpret the provisions of this MOU, the prevailing party in such action or proceeding 
shall be entitled to recover its costs of suit, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 
 
3.7  Each party to this MOU shall have no power to incur any debt, obligation, or liability on 
behalf of another party to this MOU or otherwise act as an agent of another party.   
 
3.8 Each Partner shall maintain all records related to this MOU and the Drought Grant 
Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years after the termination of this MOU or longer if 
required by the Department of Water Resources.   If the Turf Reduction Program is audited, each 
Partner shall fully cooperate with any audit performed by the Department of Resources.   
 
3.9 This MOU is made and entered into for the sole protection and benefit of each of the 
Partners.  No other person shall have any right of action based upon any provision of this MOU. 
 
3.10 The Partners shall cooperate fully with one another, and shall take any additional acts or 
sign any additional documents as may be necessary, appropriate or convenient to attain the 
purposes of this MOU.   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Partners have executed this MOU as of the day and year 
indicated on the first page of this MOU. 

 
 
CITY OF COACHELLA/ COACHELLA WATER 
AUTHORITY  

 
 
     _______________________________________ 
      
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
      
  



 6 

 
 
     COACHELLA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  
 
 
     _______________________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
 
 
     _______________________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
 
 
  



 7 

 
 

CITY OF INDIO/INDIO WATER AUTHORITY 
 

 
     _______________________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
  



 8 

 
 

MISSION SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT  
 
 
     _______________________________________ 
      
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 

  



 9 

EXHIBIT A 
 

GRANT AGREEMENT 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA- CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES
1416 NINTH STREET, P.O. BOX 942836
SACRAMENTO. CA 94236-0001

(916) 653-5791

EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Governor

May 27, 2015

Mr. Brian Macy
General Manager
Indio WaterAuthority
83-101 Avenue 45

indio, CA 92201

Proposition 84 - Drought Round - Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM)
Implementation Grant; Agreement No. 4600010887

Dear Mr. Macy:

Enclosed Is an original executed copy of Agreement No. 4600010887.

Ifyou have any questions, please contact Evon Willhoff, Project Manager, at 916.651
9286 or via email at evon.wHihoff@water.ca.QOv.

Sincerely,

« Q y P.. r

Sijsan Greene

Contract Analyst
Implementation Grants Section
Financial Assistance Branch
Division of Integrated Regional Water Management

Enclosures

cc: Evon Willhoff, Project Manager



GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA (DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES) AND
1NDIO WATER AUTHORITY

4600010887

PROPOSITION 84 INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT (IRWM) 2014 DROUGHT GRANT
CAUFORNIA PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE §75026 ET SEQ.

THIS GRANT AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the Department of Water Resources of the State of
California, herein referred to as the "State" or "DWR" and the Indio Water Authority, a public agency, in the
State of California, duly organized, existing, and acting pursuant to the laws thereof, herein referred to as the
"Grantee", which parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. PURPOSE. State shall provide funding from the Safe DrinkingWater, Water Quality and Supply, Flood
Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 to Grantee to assist in financing projects associated
with the Coachella Valley Integrated Regional Water Management Plan pursuant to Chapter 8
(commencing with Section 79560) of Division 26.5 of the California Water Code (CWC), hereinafter
collectively referred to as "IRWM Program."

2. TERM OF GRANT AGREEMENT. The term of this Grant Agreement begins on the date this Grant Agreement is
executed by State, and terminates on December 31, 2018 or when all of the Parties' obligations under this
Grant Agreement are fully satisfied, whichever occurs earlier. Execution date Is the date the State signs this .
Grant Agreement indicated on page 9.

3. TOTAL PROJECT COST.The reasonable Total Cost of the Projects is estimated to be $7,358,052.

4. GRANT AMOUNT.The maximum amount payable by the State under this Agreement shall not exceed
$5,270,636.

5. GRANTEE COST SHARE. Grantee agrees to fund the difference between the Total Project Cost, and the
Grant Amount (amount specified in Paragraph 4). Cost Share consists of Funding Match and Additional
Cost Share, as documented in Exhibit B (Budget).' Additional Cost Share is the amount necessary to fund
the project above the Grant Amount and the Funding Match. Additional Cost Share will not be reviewed
by the State tor invoicing purposes; however, the Grantee is required to maintain all financial records
associated with the project in accordance with Exhibit I (State Audit Document Requirements).

6. FUNDING MATCH. Funding Match is defined as the minimum amount of Grantee Cost Share required, and
cannot include other State funds. Grantee is required to provide a Funding Match of at least 25% of the
Total Project Cost. The Grantee's Funding Match is estimated to be $2,028,752. Grantee's Funding Match
may include in-kind services that are part of Exhibit A (Work Plan) and performed after January 1,2010.

7. GRANTEE'S RESPONSIBILITY. Grantee and its representatives shall:

a) Faithfullyand expeditiously perform or cause to be performed all project work as described in Exhibit A
(Work Plan) and in accordance with Exhibit B (Budget) and Exhibit C (Schedule).

b) Accept and agree to comply with all terms, provisions, conditions, and written commitments of this
Grant Agreement, Including all incorporated documents, and to fulfill all assurances, declarations,
representations, and statements made by Grantee In the application, documents, amendments, and
communications filed in support of its.request for Safe Dririking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood
Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 financing.

c) Comply with all applicable California laws and regulations.
d) Implement the Projects in accordance with applicable provisions of the law.
e) Fulfill Its obligations under the Grant Agreement, and be responsible tor the performance of the projects.

8. LOCAL PROJECT SPONSOR'S RESPONSIBILITY. Grantee shall assign Local Project Sponsors to act on behalf of
Grantee tor the purposes of individual project management, oversight, compliance, and operations and
maintenance. Local Project Sponsors shall be assigned in accordance with the participating agencies
identified in the Coachella Valley Integrated Regional Water Management 2014 IRWM Drought Solicitation
Implementation Grant Proposal grant application. Exhibit F identities Local Project Sponsors. Local Project
Sponsors shall also act on behalf of Grantee In the fulfillment of Grantee responsibilities where specifically
specified In this Grant Agreement.



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 2 of38

9. BASIC CONDITIONS. State shall hove no obligation to disburse money for projects under this Grant
Agreement until Grantee has satisfied the following conditions (if applicable):

a) Grantee and Local Project Sponsors demonstrate the availability of sufficienf funds to complete each
project by submitting the most recent 3 years of audited financial statements.

b) Grantee must demonstrate compliance with the groundwater compliance options set forth on pages
13 and 14 of the IRWM Program Guidelines, dated June 2014.

c) For the term of this Grant Agreement, Grantee submits timely Quarterly Progress Reports as required by
Paragraph 19, "Submission of Reporfs."

d) Grantee submits deliverables as specified in Paragraph 19 of this Grant Agreement and in Exhibit A.
e) Prior to the commencement of consfruction or implementdtlon activities. Grantee shall submit the

following to the State for each project:

1) Final plans and specifications certified by a Caiifomla Registered Professional (Civil Engineer or
Geologist, as appropriate) for the approved projects as listed in Exhibit A of this Grant Agreement.

2) Environmental Documentation:

i) Grantee submits to the State ail applicable environmental permits,
ii) Documents that satisfy the CEQA process are received by the State,
iii) State has completed its CEQA compliance review as a Responsible Agency, and
iv) Grantee receives written concurrence from the State of Lead Agency's CEQA documents and

State notice of verification of environmental permit submittal.

State's concurrence of Lead Agency's CEQA documents is fully discretionary and shall constitute a
condition precedent to any work (i.e., construction or implementation activities) for which it is
required. Once CEQA documentation has been completed, State will consider the environmental
documents and decide whether to continue to fund the projects or to require changes, alterations
or other mitigation. Grantee must also demonstrate that it has complied with all applicable
requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act by submitting copies of any environmenfal

, documents, including environmental impact statements. Finding of No Significant Impact, and
' mitigation monitoring programs as may be required prior to beginning construction/implementation.

3) A monitoring plan as required by Paragraph 21, "Project Monitoring Plan Requirements."

10. DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS. State will disburse to Grantee the amount approved, subject to the availability of
funds fhrough normal State processes. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Grant Agreement, no
disbursement shall be required at any time or in any manner which is in violation of, or in conflict with,
federal or state laws, rules, or regulations, or which may require any rebates to the federal government, or
any loss of fax-free status on state bonds, pursuant to any federal statute or regulation. Any and all money
disbursed to Grantee under this Grant Agreement and any and all interest earned by Grantee on such
money shall be used solely to pay Eligible Project Costs, as defined in Paragraph 11.

11. ELIGIBLE PROJECT COST. Grantee shall apply State funds received only to Eligible Project Costs in
accordance with applicable provisions of the law and Exhibit B. Eligible project costs include the
reasonable costs of studies, engineering, design, land and easement acquisition, legal fees, preparation of
environmental documentation, environmental mitigations, monitoring, and project construction.
Reasonable administrative expenses may be included as Total Project Costs and will depend on the
complexity of the project preparation, planning, coordination, construction, acquisitions, and
implementation. Reimbursable administrative expenses are the necessary costs incidentally but directly
related to the projects including the portion of overhead and administrative expenses that are directly
related to the projects included in this Agreement in accordance with the standard accounting practices
of the Grantee. Work performed on the projects after January 17, 2014 shall be eligible for reimbursemenf.

Costs that are not eligible for reimbursement with State funds cannot be counted as Funding Match. Costs
that are not eligible for reimbursement include, but are not limited to the following Items:

a) Costs, other than those noted above, incurred prior to the award date of the Grant.
b) Operation and maintenance costs, including post construction performance and monitoring costs.



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 3 of38

c) Purchase of equipment not an integral part of a project.
d) Establishing a reserve fund.
e) Purchase of v/ater supply.
f) Monitoring and assessment costs for efforts required after project construction is complete.
g) Replacement of existing funding sources for ongoing programs.
h) Travel and per diem costs [per diem includes subsistence and other related costs).
I) Support ot existing agency requirements and mandates (e.g., punitive regulatory agency

requirement).
j) Purchase of land In excess of the minimum required acreage necessary to operate as an integral part

of a project, as set forth and detailed by engineering and feasibility studies.
k) Payment of principal or interest of existingindebtedness or any interest payments unless the debt is

Incurred after execution of this Grant Agreement, the State agrees in writing to the eligibility of the
costs for reimbursement before the debt is incurred, and the purposes for which the debt is incurred
are otherwise eligible costs. However, this will only be allowed as Grantee cost share [i.e.. Funding
Match).

I) Overhead not directly related to project costs.

12. METHOD OF PAYMENT. Submit a copy of invoice for costs incurred and supporting documentation to the
DWR Project Manager via Grant Review and Tracking Systems [GRanTS). Additionally, the original invoice
form with signature and date (in ink) of Grantee's Project Representative, as Indicated on page 9 of this
Agreement, must be sent to the DWR Project Manager for approval. Invoices submitted via GRanTS shall
include the following information: r

a) Costs incurred for work performed in implementing the projects during the period identified In the
particular Invoice.

b) Costs incurred for any interests in real property [land or easements) that have been necessarily
• acquired for the projects during the period identified In the particular invoice for the implementation of

a project.
c) Invoices shall be submitted on forms provided by State and shall meet the following format

requirements:

1) Invoices must contain the date of the invoice, the time period covered by the invoice, and the total
amount due.

2) Invoices must be itemized based on the categories (i.e., tasks) specified in Exhibit B.The amount
claimed for salaries/wages/consultant fees must include a calculation formula (i.e., hours or days
worked times the hourly or daily rate = the total amount claimed).

3) Sufficient evidence (e.g. receipts, copies of checks, time sheets) as determined by the State must
be provided for all costs included in the invoice. Additional Cost Share shall be accounted for
separately in the progress reports.

4) Each invoice shall clearly delineate those costs claimed for reimbursement from the State's Grant
Amount, as depicted in Paragraph 4, and those costs that represent Grantee's Funding Match, as
applicable, in Paragraph 6. '

5) DWR Project Manager will notify Grantee, in a timely manner, when, upon review of an Invoice, the
State determines that any portion or portions of the costs claimed are not eligible costs or are not
supported by documentation or receipts acceptable to State. Grantee may, within thirty (30)
calendar days of the date of receipt of such notice, submit additional documentation to State to
cure such deficiency(les). If Grantee tails to submit adequate documentation curing the
deficiency(ies). State will adjust the pending invoice by the amount of ineligible or unapproved
costs. After the disbursement requirements in Paragraph 9 "Basic Conditions" are met. State will
disburse the whole or portions of State funding to Grantee, following receipt from Grantee via US
mail or Express mail delivery of a "wet signature" invoice for costs incurred, including Cost Share,
and timely Quarterly Progress Reports as required by Paragraph 19, Submission of Reports. Payment
will be made no more frequently than monthly. In arrears, upon receipt of an invoice bearing the

, Grant Agreement number.



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 4 of38

13. WITHHOLDING OF DISBURSEMENTS BY STATE. If State determines that a project is not being implemented in
accordance with the provisions ot this Grant Agreement, or that Grantee has tailed in any other respect to
comply with the provisions ot this Grant Agreement, and It Grantee does not remedy any such failure to
State's satisfaction. State may withhold from Grantee all or any portion ot the State funding and take any
other action that it deems necessary to protect its interests. Where a portion of the State funding has been
disbursed to the Grantee and State notifies Grantee of its decision not to release funds that have been

withheld pursuant to Paragraph 14, the portion that has been disbursed shall thereafter be repaid
Immediately with interest at the California general obligation bond Interest rate at the time the State notifies
the Grantee, as directed by State. State may consider Grantee's refusal to repay the requested disbursed
amount a contract breach subject to the default provisions In Paragraph 14, "Default Provisions." IfState
notifies Grantee ot Its decision to withhold the entire funding amount from Grantee pursuant to this
paragraph, this Grant Agreement shall terminate upon receipt of such notice by Grantee and the State
shall no longer be required to provide funds under this Grant Agreement and the Grant Agreement shall no
longer be binding on either party.

14. DEFAULT PROVISIONS. Grantee (and a Local Project Sponsor receiving grant funding through this Grant
Agreement) will be in default under this Grant Agreement if any of the following occur:

a) Substantial breaches of this Grant Agreement, or any supplement or amendment to it, or any other
agreement between Grantee and State evidencing or securing Grantee's obligations.

b) Making any taise warranty, representation, or statement with respect to this Grant Agreement or the
application tiled to obtain this Grant Agreement.

c) Failure to maintain an adopted IRWM Plan that meets the requirements contained In Part 2.2 ot Division
6 ot the owe, commencing with Section 10530.

d) Failure to operate or maintain project(s) In accordance with this Grant Agreement.
e) Failure to make any remittance required by this Grant Agreement. - '
f) Failure to comply with Labor Compliance Program requirements (Paragraph 18).
g) Failure to submit timely progress reports.
h) Failure to routinely invoice State.
I) Failure to meet any ot the requirements set forth In Paragraph 15, "Continuing Eligibility."

Should an event ot default occur. State shall provide a notice of default to the Grantee and shall give
Grantee at least ten (10) calendar days to cure the default from the date the notice is sent, via tirst-class
mail to the Grantee. It the Grantee tails to cure the default within the time prescribed by the State, State
may do any ot the following:

i. Declare the funding be immediately repaid, with Interest, which shall be equal to State ot California
general obligation bond Interest rate In effect at the time of the default,

il. Terminate any obligation to make future payments to Grantee,
ill. Terminate the Grant Agreement.
Iv. Take any other action that It deems necessary to protect its interests.

In the event State finds Itnecessary to enforce this provision of this Grant Agreement in the manner
provided by law. Grantee agrees to pay all costs incurred by State Including, but not limited to, reasonable
attorneys' tees, legal expenses, and costs.

15. CONTINUING ELIGIBILITY. Grantee must meet the following ongoing requirement(s) to remain eligible to
receive State funds:

a) An urban water supplier that receives grant funds governed by this Grant Agreement shall:

1) Maintain compliance with the Urban Water Management Planning Act (CWC§10610 et. seq.) and
Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction, Part 2.55. of Division 6 (CWC§ 10608 et. Seq.). Urban
water suppliers that submitted 1420 compliance Table 2 In the 2014 Drought Application must
submit, until June 30,2016:



i • Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 5 of38

i) List of tasks to Implement the BMPs listed in 1420 compliance Table 2 and a corresponding
schedule and budget.

ByJuly 1i 2016 all urban water suppliers must submit documentation that demonstrates they are
meeting the 2015 Interim GPCD target. If not meeting the Interim target, also Include a
schedule, financing plan, and budget for achieving the GPCD, as required pursuant to CWC §
10608.24.

2) Have their 2010 UWMP deemed consistent by DWR. The 2015 UWMP update will be required to be
submitted to DWR in 2016. For more Information visit the following website:
http://www.water.ca.aov/urbanwatermanaaement

b) An agricultural water supplier receiving grant funding must:

1) Comply with Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction requirements outlined In Part 2.55
[commencing with § 10608) of Division 6 of the CWC. Before July 1,2016:

i) Submit a schedule, financing plan, and budget for Implementation of the efficient water
management practices, required pursuant to CWC § 10608.48, for inclusion in the grant
agreement as an Exhibit.

2) Have their AWMP deemed consistent by DWR. The next AWMP update will be required In 2016. For
more Information visit the following website:
http://www.water.ca.aov/wateruseefflciencv/aarlcultural/aamamt.cfm

c) Grantee's diverting surface water must maintain compliance with diversion reporting requirements as
outlined in Part 5.1 of Division 2 of the CWC.

d) Projects with potential groundwater impacts must demonstrate compliance with the groundwater
compliance options set-forth on pages 13 and 14 of the IRWM Program Guidelines, dated June 2014.

e) Project Proponents that have been designated as monitoring entitles under the Califomla Statewide
Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (CASGEM) Program must maintain reporting compliance, as
required by CWC§ 10932 and the CASGEM Program.

16. PERMITS, LICENSES. APPROVALS. AND LEGAL OBLIGATIONS. Grantee shall be responsible for obtaining any
and all permits, licenses, and approvals required for performing any work under this Grant Agreement,
Including those necessary to perform design, construction, or operation and maintenance of the Projects.
Grantee shall be responsible for observing and complying with any applicable federal, state, and local
laws, rules or regulations affecting any such work, specifically those Including, but not limited to,
environmental, procurement, and safety laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances. Grantee shall provide
copies of permits and approvals to State.

17. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES. Grantee Is solely responsible for design, construction, and operation and
maintenance of projects within the work plan. Review or approval of plans, specifications, bid documents,
or other construction documents by State Is solely for the purpose of proper administration of funds by State

•and.shall not be deemed to relieve or restrict responsibilities of Grantee under this Grant Agreement.

18. LABOR COMPLIANCE. Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable California Labor Code requirements
and Standard Condition D:28 In Exhibit D. Grantee must. Independently or through a third party, adopt and
enforce a Department of Industrial Relations-certified Labor Compliance Program (LCP) meeting the
requirements of Labor Code section 1771.5 for projects funded by:

a) Proposition 84 (Safe DrinkingWater, Water Quality and Supply, Flood Control, Riverand Coastal
Protection Bond Act of 2006; PRC sections 75075 ef seq.) or

b) Any other funding source requiring an LCP.

At the State's request. Grantee must promptly submit written evidence of Grantee's compliance with the
LCP requirements.



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 6 of38

19. SUBMISSION OF REPORTS. The submlttal and approval of all reports Is a requirement for the successful
completion of this Grant Agreement. Reports shall meet generally accepted professional standards for
technical reporting and shall be proofread for content, numerical accuracy, spelling, and grammar prior to
submlttal to State. All reports shall be submitted to the State's Project Manager, and shall be submitted via
DWR's "Grant Review and Tracking System" (GRanTS). It requested. Grantee shall promptly provide any
additional information deemed necessary by State for the approval of reports. Reports shall be presented In
the formats described in the applicable portion of Exhibit G. The timely submlttal of reports is a requirement
for initial and continued disbursement of State funds. Submlttal and subsequent approval by the State, of a
Project Completion Report is a requirement for the release of any funds retained for such projects.

• Progress Reports: Grantee shall submit progress reports on a regular and consistent basis to meet the
State's requirement for disbursement of funds. The reporting period shall not exceed one quarter in
length. The progress reports shall be sent via e-mall to the State's Project Manager and shall be
uploaded into GRanTS at the frequency specified in Exhibit C, Project Schedule. The progress reports
shall provide a brief description of the work performed during the reporting period including: Grantee's
activities, milestones achieved, any accomplishments, and any problems encountered in the
performance of the work under this Agreement.

• Water Management Status Report: Until June 30, 2016, Grantee shall submit a status report on
implementation of AB 1420 status for the urban water suppliers that submitted 1420 compliance Table 2
in the 2014 Drought Application. The status report shall be uploaded into GRanTS no later than April 30,
2016. By July 1,2016 all urban water suppliers must submit an UWMP that demonstrates they are
meeting the 2015 interim SBx7-7 GPCD target. Ifnot meeting the interim target, the urban water
suppliers must also submit, with the UWMP, a schedule, financing plan, and budget for achieving the
GPCD, as required pursuant to CWC § 10608.24. These urban water suppliers (that are not meeting their
2015 GPCD target) will subsequently have to submit annual reports that include a schedule, financing
plan, and budget for achieving the GPCD, as required pursuant to CWC § 10608.24 every year by June
30, starting June 30, 2017. Failure to progress on Implementation may result in continuing grant eligibility
actions under paragraph 15.

• Project Completion Report: Grantee shall prepare and submit to State a separate Project Completion
Report for each project included in Exhibit A. Grantee shall submit a Project Completion Report within
ninety (90) calendar days of projects completion. Project Completion Reports shall include, in part, a
description of actual work done, any changes or amendments to each project, and a final schedule
showing actual progress versus planned progress, copies of any final documents or reports generated or
utilized during a project. The Project Completion Report shall also include, if applicable, certification of
final project by a California Registered Professional (Civil Engineer or Geologist, as appropriate),
consistent with Standard Condition D.l 9 in Exhibit D. A DWR "Certiticotion of Project Completion" form
willbe provided by the State.

• Grant Completion Report: Upon completion of all projects included in Exhibit A, Grantee shall submit to
State a Grant Completion Report. The Grant Completion Report shall be submitted Nvithin ninety (90)

• calendar days of submitting the Project Completion Report for the final project to be completed under
the Grant Agreement. The Grant Completion Report shall include reimbursement status, a brief
description of each project completed, and how those projects will further the goals of the IRWM Plan
and identify any changes to the IRWM Plan, as a result of project implementation. Retention for the last
project to be completed as part of this Grant Agreement will not be disbursed until the Grant
Completion Report is submitted to and approved by the State.

• Post-Performance Reports: Grantee shall submit Post-Performance Reports. Post-Performance Reports
shall be submitted to State within ninety (90) calendar days after the first operational year of a project
has elapsed. This record keeping and reporting process shall be repeated annually for a total of ten (10)
years after the completed projects begin operation.

20. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF PROJECT. For the useful life of construction and implementation
projects and In consideration of the funding made by State, Grantee agrees to ensure or cause to be
performed the commencement and continued operation of each project, and shall ensure or cause each



Grant A^eement No. 4600010887
Page 7 of38

project to be operated In an efficient and economical manner; shall ensure ail repairs, renewals, and
replacements necessary to the efficient operation of the same are provided; and shall ensure or cause the
same to be maintained in as good and efficient condition as upon its construction, ordinary and
reasonable wear and depreciation excepted. The State shall not be liable tor any cost of such
maintenance, management, or operation. Grantee or their successors may, with the written approval of
State, transfer this responsibility to use, manage, and maintain the property. For purposes of this Grant
Agreement, "useful life" means period during which an asset, property, or activity is expected to be usable
tor the purpose it was acquired or implemented; "operation costs" include direct costs Incurred tor material
and labor needed for operations, utilities, insurance, and similar expenses, and "maintenance costs"
include ordinary repairs and replacements of a recurring nature necessary for capital assets and basic
structures and the expenditure of funds necessary to replace or reconstruct capital assets or basic
structures. Refusal of Grantee to ensure operation and maintenance of the projects in accordance with this
provision may, at the option of State, be considered a breach of this Grant Agreement and may be
treated as default under Paragraph 14, "Default Provisions."

21. PROJECTMONITORING PLAN REQUIREMENTS. Grantee shall develop and submit to State a Project
Monitoring Plan that incorporates: (1) the Project Performance Monitoring Table requirements outlined in
the Proposition 84 2014 IRWM Drought Grant Proposal Solicitation Package (in.Exhibit A), and (2) the
guidance provided in Exhibit J, "Project Monitoring Plan Guidance."

A Project Monitoring Plan shall be submitted to the State prior to disbursement of-State funds for
construction or monitoring activities. See Exhibit H," Requirements tor Statewide Monitoring and Data
Submittal", tor web links and information regarding other State monitoring and data reporting requirements.

22. STATEWIDE MONITORING REQUIREMENTS. Grantee shall ensure that all groundwater projects and projects
that Include groundwater monitoring requirements are consistent with the Groundwater Quality Monitoring
Act of 2001 (Part 2.76 (commencing with Section 10780) of Division 6 of California Water Code) and, where
applicable, that projects that affect water quality shall include a monitoring component that allows the
integration of data into statewide monitoring efforts, including where applicable, the Surface Water
Ambient Monitoring Program carried out by the State Water Resources Control Board.

23. NOTIFICATION OF STATE. Grantee shall promptly notify State, in writing, of the following items:

a) Events or proposed changes that could affect the scope, budget, or work performed under this Grant
Agreement. Grantee agrees that no substantial change in the scope of a project will be undertaken
until written notice of the proposed change has been provided to State and State has given written
approval for such change. Substantial changes generally include changes to the work plan, schedule
or term, and budget.

b) Any public or media event publicizing the accomplishments and/or results of this Grant Agreement and
provide the opportunity for attendance and participation by State's representatives. Grantee shall
make such notification at least 14 calendar days prior to the event.

c) Final inspection of the completed work on a project by a California Registered Professional (Civil
Engineer or Geologist, as appropriate), in accordance with Standard Condition D.l 9 in Exhibit D.
Grantee shall notify the State's Project Manager of the inspection date at least 14 calendar days prior
to the inspection in order to provide State the opportunity to participate in the inspection.

24. NOTICES. Any notice, demand, request, consent, or approval that either party desires or is required to give
to the other party under this Grant Agreement shall be in writing. Notices may be transmitted by any of the
following means:

a) By delivery in person.
b) Bycertified U.S. mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid.
c) By"overnight" delivery service; provided that next-business-day delivery is requested by the sender.
d) By electronic means.



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 8 of38

Notices delivered in person will be deemed effective immediately on receipt (or refusal of delivery or
receipt). Notices sent by certified mall will be deemed effective given ten (10) calendar days after the date
deposited with the U. S. Postal Service. Notices sent by overnight delivery service will be deemed effective
one business day after the date deposited with the delivery service. Notices sent electronically will be
effective on the date of transmission, which is documented In writing. Notices shall be sent to the addresses
set forth in Paragraph 26. Either party may, by written notice to the other, designate a different address that
shall be substituted for the one below.

25. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. Upon completion of this Grant Agreement, Grantee's performance will be
evaluated by the State and a copy of the evaluation will be placed in the State file and a copy sent to the
Grantee.

26. PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES. The Project Representatives during the term of this Grant Agreement are as
follows:

Department of Water Resources
Paula Landis

Chief, Division of IRWM

P.O: Box 942836

Sacramento CA 94236-0001

Phone: (916) 651-9220
e-mail: plandis@water.ca.gov

Direct all inquiries to the Project Manager:

Department of Water Resources
Evon Wlllhoff

Division of Integrated Regional Water Management
P.O. Box 942836

Sacramento, CA 94236
Phone: (916) 651-9286
e-mail: evon.willhoff@water.ca.gov

Indio Water Authority
Brian Macy
General Manager
83-101 Avenue 45

IndIo, CA 92201
Phone: (760) 625-1808
e-mail: bmacy@lndlo.org

IndIo Water Authority
Scott Rogers
Manager of Engineering and Water Quality
83-101 Avenue 45

IndIo, CA 92201
Phone: (760) 625-1870
e-mail: srogers@indlo.org

Either party may change its Project Representative or Project Manager upon written notice to the other
party.

27. STANDARD PROVISIONS. The following Exhibits are attached and made a part of this Grant Agreement by
this reference:

Exhibit A-Work Plan

Exhibit B-Budget
Exhibit C - Schedule

Exhibit D - Standard Conditions

Exhibit E-Authorizing Resolution
Exhibit F- Local Project Sponsors
Exhibit G- Report Formats and Requirements
Exhibit H- Requirements for Statewide Monitoring and Data Submittal
Exhibit 1- State Audit Document Requirements and Funding Match Guidelines for Grantees
Exhibit J - Project Monitoring Plan Components



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Grant Agreement.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES

Paula J.Tandis,^., Chief
Division ofInfected Regional Water Management

Date

Ap^oved as to Legal Form and Sufficiency

Spencer Kenner, Assistant Chief Counsel
Office of Chief Counsel

Date.
S-in.

INDIO WATER AUTHORITY

^n Macy, Gen^l Manager

Date

Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 9 ofS8



Exhibit A

Work Pun

Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 10 of38

Project 1: Grant Administration

Implementing Agency: Indio Water Authority (IWA)

The Coachella Valley Regional Water Management Group (CVRWMG) authorized IWA to act as the applicant
and the grant manager for the Proposition 84, IRWM 2014 Drought Grant.

IWA will, administer these funds and respond to DWR's reporting and compliance requirements associated
with the grant administration. IWA will act in a coordination role: disseminating grant compliance Information
to the project managers responsible for implementing the projects contained in this agreement, obtaining and
retaining evidence of compliance (e.g., CEQA/NEPA documents, reports, monitoring compliance documents,
labor requirements, etc.), obtaining data for quarterly progress reports from individual project managers,
assembling and submitting quarterly progress reports to the State, and coordinating all invoicing and payment
of invoices.

Task 1 Project Administration: Budget Category (a)

Task la Contract Administration

IWA will respond to DWR's reporting and compliance requirements associated with the grant administration
and will coordinate with the project managers responsible for implementing the projects contained In this
agreement.

Task lb Invoicine

IWA will be responsible for compiling invoices for submittal to DWR. This includes collecting invoice
documentation from each of the project proponents and compiling the information into a DWR Invoice
Packet.

Task Ic Progress Reports and Project Completion Report(sl

IWA will be responsible for compiling quarterly progress reports for submittal to DWr( IWA will coordinate
with prbject proponent staff as needed to prepare and submit Quarterly Progress Reports and Final
Completion Reports for each project, as well as the Grant Completion Reports.

Reportsjwill meet generally accepted professional standards for technical reporting and the requirements
terms of the contract with DWR outlined in Exhibit G of this agreement. For example. Quarterly Progress
Reports,will explain the status of the project and will include the following information: summary of the work
completed for the project during the reporting period; activities and milestones achieved; and
accomplishments and any problems encountered in the performance of work. Project Completion Reports will
include: documentation of actual work done; changes and amendments to each project; a final schedule
showingactual, progress versus planned progress; and copies of final documents and reports generated during
the project.

Task 1 Deliverables:

• Executed Grant Agreement

• Invoices and associated backup documentation

• Quarterly Progress Reports

• Draft and Final Project Completion Report



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 11 of38

Project 2: Coachella Valley Regional Turf Reduction Program

Implementing Agency: Indio Water Authority (IWA)

IWA, Coachella Valley Water District, Desert Water Agency, Coachella Water Authority, and Mission Springs
Water District (collectively referred to as the CV Agencies) will implement the Coachella Valley Regional Turf
Reduction Program (Program) within their service areas. The Program will make turf rebates available to a
variety of water customers .In the Coachella Valley, including: golf courses, residential, commercial, municipal,
and multi-family sites. The Program will assist the Coachella Valley region in effectively managing groundwater
by reducing water demand and groundwater pumping. The Program will save approximately 815 acre-feet of
water each year by reducing water demand. The Program builds upon an existing Coachella Valley wide
conservation program. The tasks and deliverable requirements in the Work Plan apply to each agency. More
detail can be found in Exhibit B Budget.

Task 1 Project Administration: Budget Category (a)

Task la Proiect Management

This task consists of project administration responsibilities associated with the Regional Turf Reduction
Program, including managing the grant agreement, complying with grant requirements, preparing and
submitting supporting grant documents, and coordinating with the IWA. This task also includes administrative
responsibilities associated with the project, such as coordinating with any partnering agencies as necessary.

Task la Deliverables:

• Environmental Information Form (EIF)

• Financial Statements

• Invoices

• Other Applicable Project Deliverables

I

Task lb Reporting

Prepare 'quarterly progress reports, detailing work completed during reporting period as outlined In Exhibit G
of this agreement. Submit reports to IWA for review and inclusion in progress report to be submitted to DWR.

Prepare draft Final Project Completion Report and submit to DWR for DWR Project Manager's comment and
review no later than 90 days after project completion. Prepare Final Report addressing IWA/DWR's comrrients.
The report shall be prepared and presented in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit G.

Task lb Deliverables:

• Quarterly Project Progress Reports

• Draft and Final Project Completion Reports

Task 2 Land Purchase/Easement: Budget Category (b)
/

Not Applicable



Grant A^eement No. 4600010887
Page 12 of38

Task 3 Planning/Design/Engineering and Environmental Documentation: Budget Category (c)

Task 3a Develop Guidelines and Specifications

Develop guidelines and specifications specific to customers in agencies' service area.

Task 3a Deliverables:

• Turf Rebate Guidelines, Standards, and Specifications

Task 4 Construction/Implementation: Budget Category (d)

Task 4a Outreach

Execute marketing and outreach to promote the rebate program. The outreach materials will target different
end-users (i.e. municipal, commercial, residential, etc.). This task will make necessary changes and updates to
the existing conservation home page as well as the regional conservation website (www.cvwatercounts.com)
to promote the regional turf rebate program. CV Agencies may also develop applicable supporting documents
such as draft design plans, how-to assistance materials, etc. and may conduct additional outreach as
appropriate, including social media updates, mailers, newsletters, press releases, etc.

Task 4a Deliverables:

• Outreach Campaign specified to different end-users

• Additions to CV Agencies' website and CV Water Counts website

• Final design plans and ideas, how-to assistance, FAQs, and other supporting documents

• Outreach tools and materials (social media, mailers, newsletters, press releases, etc.)

Task 4b Implementation of Turf Rebate Program

Administer the pVogram, including rebate application review and approval, pre- and post-site visits to
customer sites, verification of successful project completion, customer support, rebate check processing, and
program website maintenance. This program will issue rebates to remove a minimum of 5,900,000 square feet
of turf so that it can be replaced with a more sustainable water efficient landscape. Each square foot of turf
removed is estimated to conserve 55.8 gallons of potable water per year. This task also includes work to
measure ,and report program progress and budgeted funds for materials and equipment necessary to
complete the turf replacement or removal activities in compliance with the conditions of the rebate program
(as defined in Task 3).

Task 4b Deliverables:

• Site visit installation reports (pre and post)

• Original customer material receipts

• Maps with geographic locations of program participants



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 13 of38

Project 3: Disadvantaged Community (DAG) Onslte Plumbing Retrofit Program

Implementing Agency: Indio Water Authority (IWA)

IWA will implement the DAG Onslte Plumbing Retrofit Program for DACs in the Coachella Valley. The Program
will address inefficient onsite plumbing and drinking water quality issues by replacing fixtures to address
potential sources of drinking water quality contamination and reduce water loss. The Program will provide
outreach, technical support, and rebates for DACs to repair and retrofit their current plumbing systems. The
Program will save approximately 107 acre-feet of water each year by improving efficiency and reducing system
loss.

Task 1 Project Administration: Budget Category (a)

Task la Project Management

This task consists of project administration responsibilities associated with the DAC Onsite Plumbing Retrofit
Program, including managing the grant agreement, complying with grant requirements, preparing and
submitting supporting grant documents. This task also includes administrative responsibilities associated with
the project, such as coordinating with any partnering agencies as necessary.

Task la Deliverables:

• Environmental Information Form (EIF)

• Financial Statements

• Invoices

• Other Applicable Project Deliverables

Task lb Reporting

Prepare quarterly progress reports, detailing work completed during reporting period as outlined in Exhibit G
of this agreement. Submit reports to be Included in the progress report submitted to DWR.

Prepare 'draft Final Project Completion Report and submit to DWR for DWR Project Manager's comment and
review no later than 90 days after project completion. Prepare Final Report addressing DWR's comments. The
report shall be prepared and presented in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit G.

I

Task lb'Deliverables:

• Quarterly Project Progress Reports

• Draft.and Final Project Completion Report

Task 2 Land Purchase/Easement: Budget Category (b)
Not Applicable



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 14 of38

Task 3 Planning/Design/Engineering and Environmental Dacumentation: Budget Category (c)

Task 3a Develop Guidelines and Specifications

Work completed under this subtask includes developing guidelines and specifications to guide implementation
of the rebate program.

Task 3a Deliverables:

• Final program outreach and application structure

Task 3b Develop Outreach Materials

Develop an outreach program to raise awareness about the Program. This work will be completed by IWA in
coordination with local non-profit organizations (partner organizations) that will partner with IWA for
implementation of the Program.

Task 3b Deliverables:

• Final Program outreach campaign

• Outreach tools and materials (social media, mailers, newsletters, press releases, etc.)

Task 3c Pre-lmplementation Activities

CVWD and partner organizations will work with interested parties to verify Median Household Income (MHI)
data to yalidate residents qualify as DACs. CVWD and the partners will design evaluation forms that will be
used to determine the scope of work related to onsite needs for each applicant.

Task 2c Deliverables:

• Documentation of DAG status

• Copies of evaluation forms

• Completed program application with expected fixture and plumbing retrofits and details of initial
conditions

Task 4 Construction/Implementation: Budget Category (d)

Task 4a Proiect implementation

Administer the Program, including application review and approval, pre- and post-site visits, verification of
successful project completion, and rebate check processing. Any information about the state of plumbing
system before or during rehabilitation will be gathered for further water savings analysis.

Upon being approved as DACs, partner organizations will work with interested parties to describe the program
structure, understand onsite needs, and help residents fill out necessary application materials.



^ GrantAff-eement No. 4600010887
\ Page 15 of38

Upon completion.of onsite retrofits, final work will be done to compile the information gathered before and
after system rehabilitation to calculate amount of water saved or potential water savings based on prior and
future system characteristics. Once the program Is complete, a final program report will be written to describe
lessons-learned, obstacles, and other necessary Information to help other DACs duplicate the program. This
work will be completed by CVWD in coordination with the partners.

Task 4a Deliverables:

• Customer site visit reports (pre and post)

• Invoices for material costs from customers

• Maps with geographic locations of program participants

• Report from partner organization or contractor on post-construction state of system/fixtures
• Program water savings calculations

• Final program report with lessons-learned



J

Exhibit B

Budget

Grant A^eement No. 4600010887
Page 16 of38

Coachella Valley VMImplementation-Drought
(a) (b] (d) (e]

Individual PrpjectTitle

, 1

GrantAmount

' Non-State

Share

(Funding
Mateh]

. Additioiial

CostShare
Total Cost

% Funding ,
Match

Project 1: Grant Adrainistratioii $100,000 $0 $0 $100,000 0%

Project 2: CVRegional.Turf
Reduction Program

$4,870,636 $2,028,752 $58,664 $6,958,052 29%

Indio Water Audiority $1,290,212 $537,414 $15,534 • $1,843,160 29%

Coachella Valley Water District $1,290,212 $537,414 $15,534 $1,843,160 29%

Desert Water Agency $1,290,212 $537,414 $15,534 $1,843,160 29%

\ Coachella Water Authority $500,000 $208,255 $6,031 $714,286 29%

Mission SpringWater District $500,000 $208,255 $6,031 $714,286 29%

*Project 3:.DAC On-Site Retrofit
Program'

$300,000 $0 $0 $300,000 0%

.OGrand^;Tp^ $5,270,636 $2,028,752 $58,664 $7,358;052 29%

DACiHinding Match Waiver Total' $300,000 •

* DAC Project with funding match waiver

Project#!-Grant AdmiiiistTation

far fbl, fcl fdl

Gategoiy
Grant

Amount

Ndn'-State

Share

(Funding,
Match")

Additional

! CostShare
• Total

(a] Direct Project Administration $100,000 $0 $0 $100,000

W Land Purchase/ Easement $0' $0 $0 $0

(c)

Planning/ Design/
Engineering/Environmental

Documentation

$0 $0 ' $0 $0 ,

Cd] Implementation $0 $0 $0 $0

w
J '

Grand Total< $100,000 $0 $0 $100,000

^ • . . . . . .. ^ - "



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 17 of38

Project #2 - Coachella Valley Turf Reduction Program

fal fbl fcT fdl.

Category
Grant

Amount

Non-State

Share

(Fuhditig,
Matchl j

Additional

, CostShare
Total

(aj Direct Project Administration $0 $179,729 i $0 $179,729

Indio Water AuUiority $0 $59,490 $0 $59,490

Coachella Valley Water District $0 $21,496 $0 $21,496

Desert Water Agency $0 $50,000 $0 $50,000

Coachella Water Audiority $0 $18,743 $0 $18,743

Mission Springs Water District $0 $30,000 $0 $30,000

(b) Land Purchase/Easement $0 $0 $0 $0

Indio Water Authority $0 $0 $0 $0

Coachella Valley Water District $0 $0 - $0 $0

Desert Water Agency $0 $0 $0 $0

Coachella Water Audiority $0 $0 $0 $0

Mission Springs Water District $0 $0 $0 $0

(c)
Planning/ Design/ Ehgineerihg/
Environmental Documentation

$0 $14,500 $0 $14,500

Indio Water Authority $0 $2,500 $0 $2,500

Coachella Valley Water District $0 $0 $0 $0

' Desert Water Agency $0 $0 $0 $0

1 Coachella Water Authority $0 $0 $0 $0

Mission Springs Water District $0 $12,000 $0 $12,000

(d) Implementation $4,870,636 $1,834,523 $58,664 $6,763,823

Indio Water Authority $1,290,212 $475,424 $15,534 $1,781,170

Coachella Valley Water District $1,290,212 $515,918 $15,534 $1,821,664

Desert Water Agency $1,290,212 $487,414 $15,534 $1,793,160

Coachella Water Audiority $500,000 $189,512 $6,031 $695,543

Mission Springs Water District $500,000 $166,255 $6,031 $672,286

(e] Grand Total $4>870,636 $2,028,752 $58,664 $6,958,052



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 18 of38

^Project #; - DAG Plumbing Retrofits Proftram

fal fbl fcl fdl
i
t

j Category
I

Grant

Amount

NonrState

Share

(Funding.
Match!

Additional

CostShare.
Total

i(a] Direct Project Administration $18,105 $0 $0 $18,105

,[b3 Land Purchase/ Easement $0 $0 $0 $0

[c]

Planning/Design/
Engineering/Environmental

' Documentation

$36,750 $0 $0 $36,750

Cd] Implementation $245,145 $0 $0 $245,145

(e) Grand'Tptal . $300,000 $0 $0 $300,000

* DAC project withfunding match waiver J ^



Exhibit C

Schedule

Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 19 of 38

Project 1:; Grant Administration

Task 1 Direct Project Administration Nov 2014 Dec 2018

Task 1a; Contract Administration NOV2014 Dec 2018

Deliverable: Executed GrantAgreement

Task lb: Invoicing Nov2014 Dec 2018

Deliverables: Invoices and associated backup documentation

Task 1c: Reporting Quarterly Reports and Project Completion Report Nov 2014 Dec 2018

Deliverables: Quartedy Progress Reports and the Draft and Final Project Completion Report

Project 2: Coachelfa Valley Turf Reduction Program |
START END 1

Task 1 Project Administration Nov 2014 Dec 2018

Indio Vteter Authority _.

Task 1.a: Project Management Nov2014 Dec 2018

Deliverables: Environmental Informadon Form. Finana'al Statements. Invoices. Reports, and Back-up Docs.

Task 1b: Reporting Nov2014 Dec 2018

Deliverables: Quarterly ProjectProgress Reports. Draft and Final Project Completion Reports

Coachella Valley Water DIstnct

Task 1.a: Project Management Nov2014 Dec 2018

Deliverables: Environmental InfyrmaBon Form. Financial Statements. Invoices. Reports, and Back-up Docs.

Task lb: Reporting Nov2014 Dec 2018

Deliverables: Quarterly Project Progress Reports, Draft and Final Project Completion Reports

lOesertWater Aqericy
Task l.a: Project Management Nov2014 Dec 2018

Deliverables: Environmental InformaBon Form, Financial Statements. Invoices. Reports, and Back-up Docs.

Task 1b: Reporting Nov2014 Deo 2018

' 1 Deliverables: Quarterly Project Progress Reports, Draft and Final ProjectCompleBon Reports

Coachella Water Authority ...

Task l.a: Project Management Nov2014 Dec 2018

Deliverables: Environmental InhrmaBon Forni. Financial Statements. Invoices. Reports, and Back-up Docs.

' Task lb: ' Reporting Nov2014 Dec 2018

1 Deliverables: Quarterly ProjectProgress Reporte, Draft and Final Project CompleBon Reports

Mission Spriniqs Water District

Task l.a: Project Management Nov2014 Dec 2018

Deliverables: Environmental InhrmaBon Form, Financial Statements, Invoices, Reports, and Back-up Docs.

Task lb: Reporting Nov2014 Dec 2018

Deliverables: Quarterly Project Progress Reports, Draft and Final Project CompleBon Reports

Task 2 Land Purchase/Easement N/A N/A

Task 2a: |Land Acquisition N/A N/A



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 20 of38

|Project!2: Coachella Valley Turf Reduction Program
START END' 1

Task 3 Planning/Deslgn/Engineerlng/Environmental Documentation June 2014 Dec 20^m

llndib V\teter Authorltv •'

Task 3a; Develop Guidelines and Specifications June 2014 July 2015

Deliverables: TurfRebate Guidelines, Standards, end SpeaScat'ons

ICoachellaVallieyWater District.;
Task 33; Develop Guidelines and Specifications N/A N/A

Desert Water Aqencv

Task 3a; Develop Guidelines and Specifications N/A N/A

Coachella,WaterAithority.

Task 3a: i Develop Guidelines and Specifications N/A N/A

I

Mission Sprihqs;V\bter District

Task 3a; Develop Guidelines and Specifications June 2014 July 2015

Deliverables: TurfRebate Guidelines, Standards, end SpetiScatons

Task 4 Construction/ Implementation June 2014 Dec 201fl
lihdio.Vifeiter/^tHbrity^^^ '

Task 4a; Outreach NOV2014 NOV2018

Deliverabtes: Web^te Updates, Final Documents and Outreach Materials

Task 4b; Impiementation of Turf Rebate Program Jan 2015 Dec 2018

Deliverable: InstaliaSon Reports, Customer Receipts. Maps Identifying Program Part'cipants

Coachella Valley Water District

Task 4a; Outreach Nov2014 NOV2018

Deliverables: Website Updates, Final Documents and Outreach Materials

Task 4b: ; Implementation of Turf Rebate Program Jan 2015 Dec 2018

Deliverable: Installation Reports, Customer Receipts, Maps IdenSfying Program Participants /

Desert Water i^ency ' '
Task 4a: Outreach NOV2014 NOV2016

: Deliverabtes: Website Updates, RnalDocuments and Outreach Materials

Task 4b; Implementation ofTurf Rebiate Program ' Jan 2015 Dec 2018
' Deliverable: Installab'on Reports, CustomerReceipts, Maps IdenS^'ng Program Participants

Coachella WaterAiidiority ' '

Task 4a; Outreach Nov2014 NOV2016

i 1 Deliverables: Website Updates, Final Documents and Outreach Materials

Task 4b; Implementation of Turf Rebate Program Jan 2015 Dec 2018

Deliverable: Installation Reports, Customer Receipts, Maps Identifying Program Parbcipants

Mission Spflhiqs Water District

Task 4a: Outreach Nov2014 NOV2018

. Deliverables: Website Updates, Final Documents and Outreach Materials

Task 4b: Implementation of Turf Rebate Program Jan 2015 Dec 2018

Deliverable: Installation Reports, Customer Receipts, Maps Identifying Program Participants



Grant A^eement No. 4600010887
Page 21 of38

Project 3: DAC Onsite Plumbing Retrofit Program
•

START END 1
Task 1 Direct Project Administration Nov 2014 Dec 2018

Task 1.a; Project Management NOV2014 Dec 2018

Deliverabtes: Environmental Infbrmat'on Form. Financial Statements. Invoices, Reports, and Back-up Docs.

Task 1b: Reporting Nov2014 Dec 2018

Deiiverabies: Quarterly Project Progress Reports, Draft and Final Project Completion Reports

Task 2 Land Purchase/Easement N/A N/A

Task 2a: Land Acquisition N/A N/A

Deiiverabies: None

Task 3 Plannlng/Deslgn/Engineering/Environmental Documentation Nov 2014 July 2015

Task 3a: Develop Guldeiines and Specifications Nov 2014 July 2015

Deiiverabie: Final program outreach and application stnjcture

Task 3b: Develop Outreach Materials 1Nov 2014 July 2015
1

Deliverables: Final Program Outreach Campaign, and Copies ofOutreach Tools and Materials

Task 3c: Pre-lmplementation Activities Jan 2015 July 2015

Deliverables: DAC status Documente, Copies ofEvaluation Forms, Completed Program Application

Task 4 Construction/implementation Jan 2015 Dec 2018

Task 4a: Project Implementation Jan 2015 Dec 2018

Deliverables: Installation Reports. Customer Receipts. Maps Identiting Program Participants. Post-Construction
System/Fixtures Status Report, Program Water Savings Calculations. Final Program Reportvrith Lessons-Beamed

\



EXHIBIT D

STANDARD CONDITIONS

Grant A^eement No. 4600010887
Page 22 of38

D.I) ACCOUNTING AND DEPOSIT OF FUNDING DISBURSEMENT:

a) Separate Accounting of Funding Disbursements and Interest Records: Grantee shall account for the
money disbursed pursuant to this Grant Agreement separately from all other Grantee funds.
Grantee shall maintain audit and accounting procedures that are In accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and practices, consistently applied. Grantee shall keep complete
and accurate records of all receipts, disbursements, and interest earned on expenditures of such
funds. Grantee shall require its contractors or subcontractors to maintain books, records, and other
documents pertlrrent to their work in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and practices. Records are subject to inspection by State at any and all reasonable times.

b) Fiscal Management Systems and Accounting Standards: The Grantee agrees that, at a minimum, its
fiscal control and accounting procedures will be sufficient to permit tracing of grant funds to a level
of expenditure adequate to establish that such funds have not been used in violation of state law or
this Grant Agreement.

c) Disposition ot Money Disbursed: All money disbursed pursuant to this Grant Agreement shall be
deposited, administered, and accounted for pursuant to the provisions of applicable law.

d) Remittance of Unexpended Funds: Grantee shall remit to State any unexpended funds that were
disbursed to Grantee under this Grant Agreement and were not used to pay Eligible Project Costs
within a period of sixty (60) calendar days from the final disbursement from State to Grantee of funds
or, within thirty (30) calendar days of the expiration of the Grant Agreement, whichever comes first.

D.2) ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF CREDIT: Grantee shail inciude appropriate acknowledgement of credit to the
State and to all cost-sharing partners for their support when promoting the Projects or using any data
and/or information developed under this Grant Agreement. During construction of each project.
Grantee shall install a sign at a prominent location, which shall include a statement that the project is
financed under the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood Control, River and Coastal
Protection Bond Act of 2006, administered by State of California, Department of Water Resources.
Grantee shall notify State that the sign has been erected by providing them with a site map with the
sign location noted and a photograph of the sign.

D.3) AIR ORWATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under State laws, the Grantee shall not be: (1) in violation of any
order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air
pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to
Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge
prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water
pollution.

D.4) AMENDMENT: This Grant Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the Parties,
except insofar as any proposed amendments are in any way contrary to applicable law. Requests by
the Grantee for amendments must be in writing stating the amendment request and the reason for the
request. State shall have no obligation to agree to an amendment.

D.S) AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Bysigning this Grant Agreement, Grantee assures State that it
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, (42 U.S.C., 12101 et seq.), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines
issued pursuant to the ADA.

D.6) APPROVAL: This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by all parties to the agreement. Grantee
rhay not submit invoices or receive payment until all required signatures have been obtained.

D.7) AUDITS: State reserves the right to conduct an audit at any time between the execution of this Grant
Agreement and the completion of Projects, with the costs ot such audit borne by State. After
completion of the Projects, State may require Grantee to conduct a final audit to State's specifications.



^ Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 23 of38

at Grantee's expense, such audit to be conducted by and a report prepared by on Independent
Certified Public Accountant. Failure or refusal by Grantee to comply with this provision shall be
considered a breach of this Grant Agreement, and State may elect to pursue any remedies provided In
Paragraph 14 or take any other action It deems necessary to protect its interests.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 8546.7, the Grantee shall be subject to the examination and
audit by the State for a period of three years after final payment under this Grant Agreement with
respect to all matters connected with this Grant Agreement, including but not limited to, the cost of
administering this Grant Agreement. All records of Grantee or its contractor or subcontractors shall be
preserved for this purpose for at least three (3) years after project completion or final billing, whichever
comes later.

D.8) BUDGET CONTINGENCY: If the Budget Act of the current year covered under this Grant Agreement does
not appropriate sufficient funds for the Proposition 84 Implementation Grant Program, this Grant
Agreement shall be. of no force and effect. This provision shall be construed as a condition precedent to
the obligation of State to make any payments under this Grant Agreement. In this event. State shall
have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to Grantee or to furnish any other considerations under
this Grant Agreement and Grantee shall not be obligated to perform any provisions of this Grant
Agreement. Nothing In this Grant Agreement shall be construed to provide Grantee with a right of
priority for payment over any other Grantee. If funding for any fiscal year after the current year covered
by this Grant Agreement is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act for purposes of this program, State
shall have the option to either cancel this Grant Agreement with no liability occurring to State, or offer a
Grant Agreement amendment to Grantee to reflect the reduced amount.

D.9) California conservation corps: As required In WaterCode section 79038(b), Grantee shall
examine the feasibility of using the California Conservation Corps or community conservation corps to
accomplish the habitat restoration, enhancement and protection activities listed In the Exhibit A, Work
Plan, and shall use the services of one of these organizations whenever feasible.

D.I0) CEQA: Activities funded under this Grant Agreement, regardless of funding source, must be in
compliance with the Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Public Resources Code §21000 et
seq.). Information on CEQA may be found at the following links:

Environmental Information: httD://ceres.ca.aov/ceaa/

California State Clearinghouse Handbook: http://ceres.ca.aQv/Dlannlna/sch/

D.n) CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT: Forany Grant Agreement In excess of $100,000, the Grantee
acknowledges In accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, that:

a) The Grantee recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully
comply with all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement,
including, but not limited to, disclosure of Information and compliance with earnings assignment
orders, as provided in Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family
Code; and ^

b) The Grantee, to the best of Its knowledge Is tully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all
employees and isproviding the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by
the California Employmeht Development Department.

D.12) CLAIMS DISPUTE: Anyclaim that the Grantee may have regarding performance of this agreement
including, but not limited to, claims for additional compensation or extension of time, shall be submitted
to the State's Project Manager, within thirty (30) days of the Grantee's knowledge of the claim. State
and Grantee shall then attempt to negotiate a resolution of such claim and process an amendment to
this Agreement to implement the terms of any such resolution.

D.13) COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND PROCUREMENTS: Grantee shall comply with all applicable laws and
regulations regarding securing competitive bids and undertaking competitive negotiations in Grantee's
contracts with other entitles for acquisition of goods and services and construction of public works with
funds provided by State under this Grant Agreement.



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 24 of38

D.14) COMPUTER SOFTWARE: Grantee certifies that it has appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure
that state funds will not be used in the performance of this Grant Agreement for the acquisition,
operation, or maintenance of computer software in violation of copyright laws.

D.15) CONFLICT OF INTEREST: All participants are subject to State and Federal conflict of interest laws. Failure
to comply with these laws, including business and financial disclosure provisions, will result in the
application being rejected and any subsequent contract being declared void. Other legal action may
also be taken. Applicable statutes Include, but are not limited to. Government Code, Section 1090 and
Public Contract Code, Sections 10410 and 10411, for State conflict of interest requirements.

a) Current State Employees: No State officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity, or
enterprise from which.the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and
which issponsored or funded by any State agency, unless the employment, activity, or enterprise is
required as a condition of regular State employment. No State officer or employee shall contract on
his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any State agency to provide goods or
services.

b) Former State Employees: Forthe two-year period from the date he or she left State employment, no
former State officer or employee may enter into a contract In which he or she engaged in any of'
the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements, or any part of the decision-making process
relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any State agency. For the twelve
month period from the date he or she left State employment, no former State officer or employee
may enter into a contract with any State agency if he or she was employed by that State agency in
a policy-making position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the
twelve-month period prior to his or her leaving State service.

c) Employeesof the Grantee: Employeesof the Grantee shall comply with all applicable provisions of
law pertaining to conflicts of interest. Including but not limited to any applicable conflict of interest
provisions of the California Political Reform Act, Gal. Gov't Code § 87100 et seq.

d) Employees and Consultants to the Grantee: Individuals working on behalf of a Grantee may be
required by the Department to file a Statement of Economic Interests (Fair Political Practices
Commission Form 700) if it is determined that an individual is a consultant for Political Reform Act
purposes.

D.1&) DELIVERY OF INFORMATION. REPORTS. AND DATA: Grantee agrees to expedltiouslyprovide throughout
the term of this Grant Agreement, such reports, data, information, and certifications as may be
reasonably required by State.

D.l7) DISPOSITION OF EQUIPMENT: Grantee shall provide to State, not less than 30 calendar days priorto
submission of the final invoice, an itemized inventory ot equipment purchased with funds provided by
State. The inventory shall include all items with a current estimated fair market value of more than
$5,000.00 per item. Within 60 calendar days of receipt of such inventoryState shall provide Grantee with
a list of the items on the inventory that State will take title to. All other items shall become the property of
Grantee. State shall arrange for delivery from Grantee of items that it takes title to. Cost of
transportation, ifany, shall be borne by State.

D-18) DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION: Certification of Compliance: By signing this Grant Agreement,
Grantee, its contractors or subcontractors hereby certify, under penalty of perjury under the laws of
State of California, compliance with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990
(Government Code 8350 ef seq.) and have or will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the
following actions:

a) Publish a statement notifying employees, contractors, and subcontractors that unlawful
manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited
and specifying actions to be taken against employees, contractors, or subcontractors for violations,
as required by Government Code Section 8355(a)(1).



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 25 of38

b) Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program, as required by Government Code Section 8355(a)(2) to
inform employees, contractors, or subcontractors about all of the following:
I) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace.
il) Grantee's policy ot maintaining a drug-free workplace,
iii) Any available counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and
iv) Penalties that may be imposed upon employees, contractors, and subcontractors tor drug

abuse violations.

c) Provide, as required by Government Code Sections 8355(a) (3), that every employee, contractor,
and/or subcontractor who works under this Grant Agreement:
i) Will receive a copy of Grantee's drug-free policy statement, and
II) Will agree to abide by terms of Grantee's condition of employment, contract or subcontract.

D.19) FINAL INSPECTIONS AND CERTIFICATION OF REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL: Upon completion of the Project,
Grantee shall provide for a final inspection and certification by the appropriate registered professional
(California Registered Civil Engineer or Geologist) that the Project has been completed in accordance
with submitted final plans and specifications and any modifications thereto and in accordance with this
Grant Agreement. Grantee shall notify the State's Project Manager of the inspection date at least 14
calendar days prior to the Inspection in order to provide State the opportunity to participate in the
inspection.

D.20) GRANTEE COMMITMENTS: Grantee accepts and agrees to comply with all terms, provisions, conditions
and commitments of this Grant Agreement, including all incorporated documents, and to fulfill all
assurances, declarations, representations, and statements made by the Grantee in the application,
documents, amendments, and communications filed in support of its request for funding.

D.21) GRANTEE NAME CHANGE: Approval of the State's Program Manager is required to change the
Grantee's name as listed on this Grant Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of the name
change the State will process an amendment. Payment of invoices presenfed with a new name cannot
be paid prior to approval of said amendment.

D.22) GOVERNING LAW: This Grant Agreement is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with
the laws of the State of California.

D.23) INDEMNIFICATION: Grantee shall indemnify and hold and save the State, its officers, agents, and
employees, free and harmless from any and all liabilities for any claims and damages (including inverse
condemnation) that may arise out of the Projects and this Agreement, including, but not limited to any
claims or damages arising from planning, design, construction, maintenance and/or operation of levee
rehabilitation measures for this Project and any breach of this Agreement. Grantee shall require its
contractors or subcontractors to name the State, its officers, agents and employees as additional
insured on their liability insurance for activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.

D.24) INDEPENDENT CAPACITY: Grantee, and the agents and employees of Grantees, in the performance of
the Grant Agreement, shall act in an Independent capacity and not as officers, employees, or agents
of the State.

D.25) INSPECTION OF BOOKS. RECORDS. AND REPORTS: During regular office hours, each of the parties hereto
and their duly authorized representatives shall have the right to inspect and to make copies of any
books, records, or reports of either party pertaining to this Grant Agreement or matters related hereto.
Each of the parties hereto shall maintain and shall make available at all times for such inspection
accurate records of all its costs, disbursements, and receipts with respect to its activities under this Grant
Agreement. Failure or refusal by Grantee to comply with this provision shall be considered a breach of
this Grant Agreement, and State may withhold disbursements to Grantee or take any other action it
deems necessary to protect its interests.

D.26) INSPECTIONS OF PROJECT BY STATE: State shall have the right to inspect the work being performed at
any and all reasonable times during the term of the Grant Agreement. This right shall extend to any
subcontracts, and Grantee shall include provisions ensuring such access in all its contracts or
subcontracts entered into pursuant to its Grant Agreement with State.



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 26 of38

D.27) INVOICE DISPUTES: In the event of an invoice dispute, payment will not be made until the dispute Is
resolved and a corrected Invoice submitted. Failure to use the address exactly as provided may result In
return ot the Invoice to the Grantee. Payment shall be deemed complete upon deposit ot the
payment, properly addressed, postage prepaid. In the United States mall. Any claim that Grantee may
have regarding the performance ot this Grant Agreement including, but not limited to claims tor
additional compensation or extension of time, shall be submitted to the DWR Project Manager within

• thirty (30) calendar days ot Grantee's knowledge of the claim. State and Grantee shall then attempt to
negotiate a resolution of such claim and process an amendment to the Grant Agreement to implement
the terms of any such resolution.

D.2B). LABOR CODE COMPLIANCE: The Grantee will be required to keep Informed of and take all measures
necessary to ensure compliance with applicable California Labor Code requirements. Including, but not
limited to. Section 1720 efseq. ot the California Labor Code regarding public works, limitations on use ot
volunteer labor (California Labor Code Section 1720.4), labor compliance programs (Calltomla Labor
Code Section 1771.5) and payment ot prevailing wages tor work done and funded pursuant to these
Guidelines, Including any payments to the Department ot Industrial Relations under Labor Code Section
1771.3.

D.29) MODIFICATION OF OVERALL WORK PLAN: At the request of the Grantee, the State may at Its sole
discretion approve non-material changes to the portions ot Exhibit A which concern the budget and
schedule without formally amending this Grant Agreement. Non-material changes with respect to the
budget are changes that only result In reallocation ot the budget and will not result in an increase in the
amount ot the State Grant Agreement. Non-material changes with respect to each Project schedule
are changes that will not extend the term ot this Grant Agreement. Requests for non-material changes
to the budget and schedule must be submitted by the Grantee to the State in writing and are not
effective unless and until specifically approved by the State's Project Manager in writing.

D.30) NONDISCRIMINATION: During the performance ot this Grant Agreement, Grantee and its contractors or
subcontractors shall not unlawfullydiscriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any employee or
applicant tor employment because ot sex (gender), sexual orientation, race, color, ancestry, religion,
creed, national origin (including language use restriction), pregnancy, physical disability (including HIV
and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (cancer/genetic characteristics), age (over 40), marital
status, and denial ot medial and family care leave or pregnancy disability leave. Grantee and its
contractors or subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment ot their employees and
applicants tor employment are tree from such discrimination and harassment. Grantee and its
contractors or subcontractors shall comply with the provisions ot the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) etseq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated there under (California
Code ot Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 ef seq.]. The applicable regulations ot the Fair Employment
and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-t), set forth in Chapter 5 ot
Division 4 of Title 2 ot the California Code ot Regulations, are incorporated Into this Agreement by
reference and made a part hereof as it set forth in full. Grantee and its contractors or subcontractors
shall give written notice ot their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have
a collective bargaining or other agreement.

Grantee shall Include the nondiscrlmlnation and compliance provisions ot this clause In ail subcontracts
to perform work under the Grant Agreement.

D.31) NO DISCRIMINATION AGAINST DOMESTIC PARTNERS: For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended
after January 1,2007, the Grantee certifies by signing this Grant Agreement, under penalty ot perjury
under the laws ot State ot California that Grantee is In compliance with Public Contract Code section
10295.3.

D.32) OPINIONSAND DETERMINATIONS: Where the terms ot this Grant Agreement provide tor action to be
based upon, judgment, approval, review, or determination ot either party hereto, such terms are not
intended to be and shall never be construed as permitting such opinion, judgment, approval, review, or
determination to be arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable.



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 27 of38

D.33) PERFORMANCE AND ASSURANCES: Grantee agrees to faithfully and expeditiously perform or cause to be
performed all Project work as described in Exhibit A, "Work Plan" and to apply State funds received only
to Eligible Project Costs In accordance with applicable provisions of the law.

D.34) PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS: If this Grant Agreement includes services In excess of $200,000, the
Grantee shall give priority consideration In filling vacancies in positions funded by the Grant Agreement
to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 11200 in accordance with Pub.
Contract Code §10353.

D.35) PROHIBITION AGAINST DISPOSAL OF PROJECT WITHOUT STATE PERMISSION: The Grantee shall not sell,
abandon, lease, transfer, exchange, mortgage, hypothecate, or encumber In any manner whatsoever
all or any portion of any real or other property necessarily connected or used in conjunction with the
Projects, or with Grantee's service of water, without prior permission of State. Grantee shall not take any
action, including but not limited to actions relating to user tees, charges, and assessments that could
adversely affect the ability of Grantee to meet its obligations under this Grant Agreement, without prior
written permission of State. State may require that the proceeds from the disposition of any real or
personal property be remitted to State.

D.36) REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE: The use by either party of any remedy specified herein for the enforcement of
this Grant Agreement Is not exclusive and shall not deprive the party using such remedy of, or limit the
application of, any other remedy provided by law.

D.37) RETENTION; Notwithstanding any other provision of this Grant Agreement, State shall, tor each project,
withhold five percent (5.0%) until January 1, 2018 and ten percent (10.0%), thereafter, of the funds
requested by Grantee for reimbursement of Eligible Costs. Each project in this Grant Agreement will be
eligible to release Its respective retention when that project is completed and Grantee has met
requirements of Paragraph 19, "Submissions of Reports" as follows; At such time as the "Project
Completion Report" required under Paragraph 19 is submitted to and approved by State, State shall
disburse the retained funds as to that project to Grantee, except In the case of the last project to be
completed under this Grant Agreement, in which case retention tor such project will not be disbursed
until the "Grant Completion Report" Issubmitted to and approved by State.

D.38) RIGHTS IN DATA: Grantee agrees that all data, plans, drawings, specifications, reports, computer
programs, operating manuals, notes and other written or graphic work produced In the performance of
this Grant Agreement shall be made available to the State and shall be in the public domain to the
extent to which release of such materials is required under the California Public Records Act., Col. Gov't
Code §6250 etseq. Grantee may disclose, disseminate and use in whole or in part, any final form data
and information received, collected and developed under this Grant Agreement, subject to
appropriate acknowledgement of credit to State for financial support. Grantee shall not utilize the
materials tor any profit-making venture or sell or grant rights to a third party who intends to do so. The
State shall have the right to use any data described in this paragraph tor any public purpose.

D.39) SEVERABILITY: Should any portion of this Grant Agreement be determined to be void or unenforceable,
such shall be severed from the whole and the Grant Agreement shall continue as modified.

D.40) STATE REVIEWS: The parties agree that review or approval of projects applications, documents, permits,
plans, and specifications or other project information by the State Is for administrative purposes only and
does not relieve the Grantee of their responsibility to properly plan, design, construct, operate, maintain,
implement, or otherwise carry out the projects.

D.4T) SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS; This Grant Agreement may be subject to suspension of payments or
termination, or both, and Grantee may be subject to debarment if the State determines that:
a) Grantee, Its contractors, or subcontractors have made a false certification, or
b) Grantee, its contractors, or subcontractors violates the certification by tailing to carry out the

requirements noted In this Grant Agreement.

D.42) SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: This Grant Agreement and all of its provisions shall apply to and bind the
successors and assigns of the parties. No asslgnnient or transfer of this Grant Agreement or any part



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 28 of38

thereof, rights hereunder, or interest herein by the Grantee shall be valid unless and until it Isapproved
by State and made subject to such reasonable terms and conditions as State may Impose.

D.43) TERMINATION BY GRANTEE; Subject to State approval which may be reasonably withheld. Grantee may
terminate this Agreement and be relieved of contractual obligations. In doing so. Grantee must provide
a reason (s) for termination. Grantee must submit ail progress reports summarizing accomplishments up
until termination date.

D.44) TERMINATION FOR CAUSE: Subject to the right to cure under Paragraph 14, the State may terminate this
Grant Agreement and be relieved of any payments should Grantee fail to perform the requirements of
this Grant Agreement at the time and in the manner herein, provided including but not limited to
reasons of default under Paragraph 14.

D.45) TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: The State may terminate this Agreement without cause on 30 days
advance written notice. The Grantee shall be reimbursed for all reasonable expenses Incurred up to the
date of termination":

D-46) THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES: The parties to this Agreement do not intend to create rights in, or grant
remedies to, any third party as a beneficiary of this Agreement, or any duty, covenant, obligation or
understanding established herein.

D.47) TIMELINESS: Time is of the essence in this Grant Agreement.

D.48) TRAVEL: Grantee agrees that travel and per diem costs shall NOT be eligible for reimbursement with
State funds, and shall NOT be eligible for computing Grantee cost match. Travel includes the costs of
transportation, subsistence, and other associated costs incurred by personnel during the term of this
Grant Agreement.

D.49) WAIVER OF RIGHTS: None of the provisions of this Grant Agreement shall be deemed waived unless
expresslywaived in writing, it is the intention of the parties here to that from time to time either-party
may waive any of its rightsunder this Grant Agreement unless contrary to law. Anywaiver by either
party of rights arising in connection with the Grant Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver with
respect to any other rights or matters, and such provisions shall continue in full force and effect.

D.50) WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Grantee affirms that it isaware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the
California Labor Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for workers'
compensation or to undertake self-insurance In accordance with the provisions of that code, and
Grantee affirms that itwill comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the
work under this Grant Agreement and will make Its contractors and subcontractors aware of this
provision.



EXHIBIT E

Authorizing Resolution

Grant A^eement No. 4600010887
Page 29 of38

RESOLLmON NO. 2014-68

RESOLUTION OF THE INOIO WATER AUTHORITY. OF THE CITY OF INDIO,
CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE INDIO WATER AUTHORITY TO SUBMIT THE
COACHELLA VALLEY 2014 INTEGRATED REGIONAL WAtER MANAGEMENT
DROUOmr SOLICITATION IMPLEMENTATION GRANT PROPOSAL AND EXECUTE
AN AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF CAUFORNIA FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF
THREE PRIORITY WATER RESOURCES PROJECTS

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2014, Governor Edmund G. Brown proclaimed a
state ofemergency b exist In the State of Cellfomia; and

WHEREAS, on March 1. 2014, Governor Brown signed leglslaUon to assist
drought-affected communities and provide funding to better use local water supplies!
and

WHEREAS, Governor Brovm and be Callfornb Legislature haye allocated
$472.5 million In Integrated Regionel WaterManagement Funding. Of tt»t fund^g, the
Governor has directed the California Department of Water Resources to expedite the
solicitation and award of $200 mllllpn to support projects and prc^rams that provide
Immediate regional drought preparedness, Increase local water supply rellabilityand the
delivery of safe dririklng water, assist water' suppliers and regions to Implement
coriservatldn programs and measures that are not locally cost-effective, arxl/ofreduce
water qualityconflicts or ecosystem conflicts created by the drought; and

whereas, the Board of the IndloWater Authorityheld a public meeting on July
16, 2014, to consider authorizing the Indlo Water Authority to submit the Coachella
Valley Integrated Regional Water Management Drought Solicitation Implementation
Grant Proposal.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE INDIO WATER AUTHORITY DOES RESOLVE AS
FOLLOWS;

Section 1. The Recitals set forth above are hereby Incorporated into this
Resolution as Ifblly set forth herein.

Section 2. The Indio Water Authority is hereby authorized to to submit an
epplication to the Califorhfa Department of Water Resources to obtain a 2D14 Integrated
Regional Water Management Drought Grant pursuant to the .Safe prinking Water,
Water Quality and Supply, Flood Cbritrol, River and Coastal Protection Bcxid Act of
2006 (Public Resource Code Sectlpri 75001 et seq.), and enter into an agreement to
receive a grant for the: Coachella Valley 2014 Integrated Regional Water Management
Drought Solicitation implementation Grant Proposal.

Saetion 3. The Indlo Water Authority and the Irxilo Water Authority General
Manager Is, hereby authorized and directed to prepare the necessary data, conduot



GrantAgreement No. 4600010887
Page 20 of28

Investigations, file such eppltcation. and execute the Coachella Valley Integrated
Regional Water Management Drought SolicitBtion Implementation Grant with the
California Department of Water Resources.

Section 4. The President shall sign thte resolution and the Secretary shall attest
and certify to the passage and adoption thereof.

PASSED, approved; AND ADOPTED this 16th day of July 2014, by the
following vote:

AYES: Holmes, Miller, Torres, Remos Watson, Wilson
NOES: None

ATTEST:

CYNTHIA HERNAND5, qNlc]
SECRETARY

MICHAEL H: WILSON, president



Exhibit F

Local Project Sponsors

Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 31 of38

Grantee has assigned, for each project, a Local Project Sponsor according to the roles of the participating
agencies identified in the IRWM Plan. Local Project Sponsors may act on behalf of Grantee for the purposes of
individual project management, oversight, compliance, and operations and maintenance. Local Project
Sponsors are identified for each Sponsored Project below:

Local SDonsor Aqencv Designations

Sponsored Project Sponsor Agency Agency Address

Project 1 - Grant Administration Indio Water Authority 83-101 Avenue 45

Indio, CA 92201

Project 2 - Coachella Valley Turf
Reduction Program

Indio Water Authority
(Primary)

83-101 Avenue 45

Indio, CA 92201

Project 2 - Coachella Valley Turf
Reduction Program

Coachella Valley Water
District (Secondary)

P.O. Box 1058

Coachella, CA 92236

Project 2 - Coachella Valley Turf
Reduction Program

Desert Water Agency
(Secondary)

1200 Gene Autry Trail
Palm Springs, CA 92264

Project 2 - Coachella Valley Turf
Reduction Program

Coachella Water Authority
(Secondary)

1515 6*^1 Street

Coachella, CA 92236

Project 2 - Coachella Valley Turf
Reduction Program

Mission Springs Water District
(Secondary)

66575 Second Street
Desert Hot Springs, CA 92240

Project 3-DAC Plumbing Retrofit
Program

Indio Water Authority 83-101 Avenue 45
Indio, CA 92201



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 32 of38

Exhibit G

Report Formats and Requirements

The following reporting formats should be utilized. Please obtain State approval prior to submitting a report in an
alternative format.

PROGRESS REPORTS

Progress reports shall generally use the following format. This format may be modified as necessary to
effectively communicate information. For each project, discuss the following at the task level, as organized in
Exhibit A Work Plan:

• Percent complete estimate.
• Discussion of work accomplished during the reporting period.
• Milestones or deliverables completed/submitted during the reporting period.
• Scheduling concerns and issues encountered that may delay completion of the task.

For each project, discuss the following at the project level, as organized in Exhibit A Work Plan:

• Work anticipated for the next reporting period.
•! Photo documentation, as appropriate.
• Any schedule or budget modifications approved by DWR during the reporting period.

PROJECT COMPLETION REPORT

Project Completion Reports shall generally use the following format.

Executive Summary
Should include a brief summary of project information and include the following items:

• Briefdescription of work proposed to be done in the original Grant application.
• Description of actual work completed and any deviations from Exhibit A. List any official

amendments to this Grant Agreement, with a short description of the amendment.

Reports and/or Products
The following items should be provided:

Final Evaluation report
Electronic copies of any data collected, not previously submitted
As-built drawings
Final geodetic survey information
Self-Certification that the Project meets the stated goal of the Grant Agreement (e.g. 100-year level
of flood protection, HMP standard, PI-84-99, etc.)
Project photos
Discussion of problems that occurred during the work and how those problems were resolved
A final project schedule showing actual progress versus planned progress

Costs and Dispositions of Funds
A list of showing:

•. The date each invoice was submitted to State

• The amount of the invoice

• The date the check was received

• The amount of the check (If a check has not been received for the final invoice, then state this in
this section.) /

• A summary of the payments made by the Grantee for meeting its cost sharing obligations under this
Grant Agreement.



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 33 of38

• A summary of final funds disbursement including:
o Labor cost of personnel of agency/ major consultant /sub-consultants. Indicate personnel, hours,

rates, type of profession and reason for consultant. I.e., design, CEQA work, etc.
, o Project cost information, shown by material, equipment, labor costs, and any change orders '

o Any other incurred cost detail
o A statement verifying separate accounting of funding disbursements

• Summary of project cost including the following items:
o Accounting of the cost of project expenditure;
o include all internal and external costs not previously disclosed; and
o A discussion of factors that positively or negatively affected the project cost and any deviation

from the original project cost estimate.

Additional Information

• Benefits derived from the project, with quantification of such benefits provided, if applicable.
• A final project schedule showing actual progress verse planned progress as shown In Exhibit B.
• Certification from a California Registered Professional (Civil Engineer or Geologist, as appropriate)

that the project was conducted in accordance with the approved work plan and any approved
modifications thereto.

• •. Submittai schedule for the Post Performance Report and an outline of the proposed reporting
format.

/

GRANT GOMPLETiON REPORT

The Grant Completion Report shall generally use the following format. This format may be modified as
necessary to effectively communicate information on the various projects in the IRWM Program funded by this
Grant Agreement, and includes the following:

Executive Summary
The Executive Summary consists of a maximum of twenty (20) pages summarizing information for the
grant as well as the individual projects.

Reports and/or products
• Summary of the regional priorities, objectives, and water management strategies of the IRWM Plan. '
• Briefcomparison of work proposed in the original Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply,

Flood Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 IRWM Implementation Grant
application and actual work done.

• Brief description of the projects completed and how they will further the goals Identified in the
Agency's final approved IRWM Plan.

• Describe how the implemented projects wilLmeet the regional priorities identified in the final
approved IRWM Plan and how the projects contribute to regional integration.

• identify remaining work and mechanism for their implementation.
• identify any changes to the IRWM Plan as result of project implementation.
• Ifapplicable, a short discussion on how the IRWM Plan willassist in reducing dependence on Delta

water supplies.
• If applicable, a discussion of the critical water supply or water quality benefits to DAC as part of this

Grant Agreement

Cost & Disposition of Funds information
• A summary of final funds disbursement for each project.

Additional information

• A final schedule showing individual project's actual progress duration verse planned progress.
• Certification from a California Registered Professional (Civil Engineer or Geologist, as appropriate)

that the Program was conducted in accordance with the approved work plan and any approved
modifications thereto. Discussion of the synergies of the completed projects, including the



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 34 of38

Integration of project benefits and a comparison of actual benefits versus those discussed In the
original proposal.

• Submittal schedule for the Post Performance Reports for each of the projects In this Grant
Agreement.

POST-PERFORMANCE REPORT

Report, should be concise, and focus on how (each/the) project Is actually performing compared to Its
expected performance; whether the project Is being operated and maintained, and providing Intended
benefits as proposed.

Reports and/or products
• Time period of the annual report (i.e., Oct 2014 through September 2015)
• Short project description
•' Discussion of the project benefits
• An assessment of any explanations for any differences between the expected versus actual project

benefits In meeting IRWM priorities as stated In the original IRWM Implementation Grant application.
Where applicable, the reporting should Include quantitative metrics. I.e., new acre-feet of water
produced that year, acres of wildlife habitat added, etc.

• Summary of any additional costs and/or benefits deriving from the project since Its completion. If
applicable

• Continued reporting on meeting the Output Indicators and Targets discussed In the Project
Monitoring Plan discussed In Paragraph 21 of this Grant Agreement

• Any additional information relevant to or generated by the continued operation of the project



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 35 of38

Exhibit H

Requirements for Statewide Monitoring and Data Submihal

Surface and Groundwater Quality Data

Groundwoter quality and ambient surface water quality monitoring data that include chemical, physical, or
biological data shall be submitted to the State as described below, with a narrative description of data
submittal activities included in project reports, as described in Exhibit G.

Surface water quality monitoring data shall be prepared for submission to the California Environmental Data
Exchange Network (CEDEN). The CEDEN data templates are available on the CEDEN website. Inclusion of
additional data elements described on the data templates is desirable. Data ready for submission should be
uploaded to your CEDEN Regional Data Center via the CEDEN website. CEDEN website:
httD://www.ceden.ora.

Ifa project's Work Plan contains a groundwater ambient monitoring element, groundwater quality monitoring
data shall be submitted to the State for inclusion in the State Water Resources Control Board's Groundwater

Ambient Monitoring and Assessment (GAMA) Program Information on the GAMA Program can be obtained at:
httD://wvAv.waterboards.ca.aov/water issues/proarams/aama/. if further information is required, the Grantee
can contact the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) GAMA Program. A listing of SWRCB staff
involved in the GAMA program can be found at:
http://www.swrcb.ca.aov/water issues/Droarams/aama/contact.shtml

Groundwater Level Data

Grantee shall submit to DWR groundwater level data collected as part of this grant. Water level data must be
submitted using the California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (CASGEM) online data submission
system. Grantee should use their official CASGEM Monitoring Entity or Cooperating Agency status to gain
access to the online submittal tool and submit data. If the data is from wells that are not part of the monitoring
network, the water level measurements should be classified as voluntary measurements In the CASGEM
system. If the grantee Is not a Monitoring Entity or Cooperating Agency, please contact your DWR grant
project manager for further assistance with data submittal. The activity ot data submittal should be
documented in appropriate progress or final project reports, as described in Exhibit G. Information regarding
the CASGEM program can be found at http://www.WQter.ca.aov/Qroundwater/casQem/.



Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 36 of38

Exhibit I

State Audit Document Requirements and Funding Match Guidelines

FOR Grantees

State Audit Document Requirements

The list below details the documents/records that State Auditors typically reviewed In the event of a Grant
Agreement being audited. Grantees should ensure that such records are maintained for each State funded
Program/Project. Where applicable, this list of documents also includes documents relating to the Grantee's
funding match which will be required for audit purposes.

Internal Controls:

1. Organization chart (e.g.. Agency's overall organization chart and organization chart for this Grant
Agreement's funded project.

2. Written internal procedures and flowcharts for the following:
a) Receipts and deposits
b) Disbursements
cj Statereimbursement requests
d) State funding expenditure tracking
ej Guidelines, policy(les), and procedures onStatefunded Program/Project

3. Audit reports of the Grantee's Intemal control structure and/or financial stafements within the last two
years.

4. Prior audit reports on State funded Program/Project.

State Funding:

1. Original Grant Agreement, any amendment(s) and budget modification documents.
2. A list of all bond-funded grants, loans or subventions received from the State.
3. A llsfof all other funding sources for each Program/Project.

Contracfs:

1. AH subcontractor and consultant contracts and related, if applicable.
2. Contracts between the Grantee, member agencies, and project partners as related to the State

funded Program/Project.

Invoices:

1. Invoices from vendors and subcontractors for expenditures submitted to the State for payments under
the Grant Agreement.

2. Documentation linking subcontractor Invoices to State reimbursement requests and related Grant
Agreement budget line Items.

3. Reimbursement requests submitted to the State for the Grant Agreement.

Cash Documents:

1. Receipts (copies of warrants) showing payments received from the State.
2. Deposit slips or bank statements showing deposit of the payments received from the State.
3. Cancelled checks or disbursement documents showing payments made to vendors, subcontractors,

consultants, and/or agents under the Grant Agreement.

Accounting Records:

1. Ledgers showing receipts and cash disbursement entries for State funding.
2. Ledgers showing receipts and cash disbursement entries of other funding sources.
3. Bridging documents that tie the general ledger to reimbursement requests submitted to the State for the

Grant Agreement

Administration Costs:

1. Supporting documents showing the calculation of administration costs.



Grant A^eement No. 4600010887
• Page 37 of38

\

Personnel:

1. List of all contractors and Grantee staff that worked on the State funded Program/Proiect.
2. Payroll records including timesheets for contractor staff and the Grantee's

Project Files:
1. All supporting documentation maintained in the Program/Project files.
2. All Grant Agreement related correspondence.

Funding Match Guidelines

Funding Match consists of non-State funds including in^kindservices, in-kind services are defined as work
performed or items contributed (i.e., dollar value of non-cash contributions) by the Grantee (and potentially
other parties involved) directly related to the execution of Exhibit A "Work Plan" (exomp/es: volunteer services,
equipment use, and facilities). The cost of in-kind service can be counted as funding match in-lieu of actual
funds (or revenue) provided by the Grantee. Other funding match and in-kind service eligibility conditions may
apply. Provided below is guidance for documenting funding match with and without in-kind services.

1. Although tracked separately. In-kind services shall be documented and, to the extent feasible,
supported by the same methods used by the Grantee for its own employees. Such documentation •
should include the following:
a. Detailed description of the contributed item(s) or service(s)
b. Purpose for which the contribution was made (tied to Grant Agreement Exhibit A "Work Plan")
c. Name of contributing organization and date of contribution
d. Real or approximate value of contribution. Who valued the contribution and how the value was

determined? (e.g., actual, appraisal, fair market value, etc.). Justification of rate. (See item #2,
below)

e. Forcontributed labor, the person's name, the work performed, the number of hours contributed,
and the pay rate applied

f. if multiple sources exist, these should be summarized on a table with summed charges
g. Source of contribution and whether it was provided by, obtained with, or supported by government

funds

2. Rates for volunteer or in-kind services shall be consistent with those paid for similar work in the Grantee's
organization. For example,' volunteer service of clearing vegetation performed by an attorney shall be
valued at a fair market value for this service, not the rate for professional legal services, in those
instances in which the required skills are not found in the recipient organization, rates shall be consistent
with those paid for similar work in the labor market. Paid fringe benefits that are reasonable, allowable
and aliocable may be included in the valuation.

3. Funding match contribution (including in kind services) shall be for costs and services directly attributed
to activities Included in the Grant Agreement Work Plan. These services, furnished by professional and
technical personnel, consultants, and other skilled and unskilled labor may be counted as in-kind if the
activities are an integral and necessary part of the State funded Program/Project under the Grant
Agreement.

4. Cash contributions made to a Program/Project shall be documented as revenue and in-kind services as
expenditure. These costs should be tracked separately in the Grantee's accounting systems.



Introduction

Exhibit J

Project Monitoring Plan Guidance

Grant Agreement No. 4600010887
Page 38 of38

Please Include a brief description of the project (maximum -150 words) including project location.
Implementation elements, and need for project (what problem will the project address).

Project Monitoring Plan Components

The Project Monitoring Plan should contain responses to the following questions:

What are the anticipated project physical benefits?
What are the corresponding numeric targets for each project benefit?
How willproposed numeric targets be measured?
What are baseline conditions?

When will the targets be met (upon project completion, five years after completion, etc.)
How often will monitoring be undertaken (monthly yearly, etc.).
Where are monitoring point locations (ex: meter located at.., at stream mile...)? Include relevant maps.
How will the project be maintained (ex: irrigation, pest management, weed abatement..)?
What will be the frequency and duration of maintenance proposed activities?
Are there any special environmental considerations (e.g., resource agency requirements, permit
requirements, CEQA/NEPA mitigation measures)?
Who is responsible for collecting the samples (who is conducting monitoring and/or maintenance)?
How, and to whom, will monitoring results be reported (e.g.,: paper reports, online databases, public
meetings)?
What adaptive management strategies will be employed if problems are encountered during routine
monitoring or maintenance?
What Is the anticipated life of the project?

\



BOARD/MEMOS/DKL 

  6-D 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
AUGUST 18, 2015 

 
 
RE: REQUEST BOARD ACTION WITH REGARD TO DIRECTOR 
 ATTENDANCE AT ACWA REGION 9 EVENT 
 
  
Region 9 of the Association of California Water Agencies has planned an event 
for September 18, 2015 to be held at the Inland Empire Utilities Agency.  A 
copy of the event flyer is attached for your information. 
 
Staff requests the Board consider authorizing attendance at this Region 9 
event. As the Directors’ attendance would be in service to the Agency, the 
Board may wish to authorize payment of director per diem compensation and 
reimbursement of fees for any actual expenses incurred. 
 
 
 
 





7-A 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
AUGUST 18, 2015 

 
 

RE: JULY 2015 WATER USE REDUCTION FIGURES 
 

Desert Water Agency and its customers achieved a 30 percent reduction in total water 
production during July 2015 compared to the same month in 2013 – the baseline year 
used by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to measure 
statewide conservation achievements.  

To comply with Governor Brown’s April 1 Executive Order to reduce statewide water 
use by 25 percent, the State Water Board imposed mandatory restrictions and assigned 
different mandatory conservation goals to each urban area based on per capita water 
use. The adopted regulations require DWA to achieve a mandatory 36 percent 
reduction. 

Below is additional information reported to the State Board for July 2015:  

Water Production for July 2015 2,718 AF 

Water Production for July 2013 3,871 AF 

Quantity of water delivered for all commercial, industrial, and 
institutional users for the reporting month 

925.8 AF  

The percentage of the Total Monthly Potable Water Production 
going to residential use only for the reporting month 

66 % 

Population (inclusive of seasonal residents) 120,472 

Estimated R-GPCD  156.71 

How many public complaints of water waste or violation of 
conservation rules were received during the reporting month? 

160 

How many contacts (written or verbal) were made with customers 
for actual or alleged water waste or for a violation of water 
conservation rules? 

140 



  

Page 2 of 2 
 

How many formal warning actions (e.g.: written notifications, 
warning letters, door hangers) were issued for water waste or for a 
violation of conservation rules? 

120 

How many fines were issued for water waste or for a violation of 
conservation rules? 

0 

Comments: The Agency’s service area is highly seasonal making population analysis a 
complex task. The State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) analyzes data 
on a per capita basis. Historically, DWA has submitted data based on the permanent 
population of the service area; however that data does not accurately reflect water use 
in DWA’s service area which has a highly seasonal population. Based on local data, the 
correct population is higher than previously reported. The Residential Gallons Per 
Capita Per Day (R-GPCD) is being submitted using the corrected population. DWA 
would like it noted that the amount of fresh water outflow to the ocean during the month 
of July was 189,627 acre feet. 

 



7-B 

01358.00002\12544356.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

July 16, 2015 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: JULY 16, 2015 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
STATE WATER CONTRACTORS, INC. 

The July 16, 2015 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water 

Contractors, Inc., was conducted at the Tsakopoulos Library Galleria in downtown Sacramento. 

1. Water Operations Report. 

John Leahigh of DWR reported that the Department is struggling with operations, 

due to low water supplies.  As of the date of the meeting, DWR was releasing water from 

Oroville to the Feather River at the rate of 3,250 cubic feet per second.  However, Leahigh stated 

that those releases would be reduced the very next day.  Releases were being driven by water 

quality requirements in the Delta, and he noted that DWR was already slightly exceeding some 

of those water quality standards.  As a bit of good news, Leahigh reported that Old and Middle 

River water quality has been pretty good, thanks to the temporary barriers that were installed in 

the Delta.  He said that the barriers are helping significantly with water quality at the pumps.  

The State’s share of storage in the San Luis Reservoir was at 600,000 acre-feet, while the CVP 

share was at only 60,000 acre-feet.  As of the date of the meeting, the CVP Contractors owed 

DWR approximately 100,000 acre-feet of water under the Coordinated Operations Agreement.  

That water will be made up later on, and Leahigh stated that there appeared to be sufficient water 

in the San Luis Reservoir to satisfy State Project deliveries for the year. 

2. Energy Update. 

Power and gas prices continue to remain low.  The cost of gas this year remains 

lower than it was last year.  The gas supply outlook is steady, and there appears to be sufficient 

inventory to cover anticipated needs in the near future.  Fracking techniques have resulted in 



 

 
- 2 - 

01358.00002\12544356.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

greater extractions from shale.  In May the State Water Project delivered 135,000 acre-feet of 

water, with energy purchased to move that water. 

3. General Manager’s Report. 

Stefanie Morris has stepped in as Acting General Manager of the State Water 

Contractors while Terri Erlewine is on a five month leave of absence.  In her report, she said that 

an initiative is being circulated state-wide for the ballot which would require voter approval in 

order to issue revenue bonds in an amount exceeding $2 billion.  The obvious objective here is to 

force the State to seek voter approval for the proposed water supply improvements in the Delta.  

The campaign is being funded by Mr. and Mrs. Cortopassi, who unsuccessfully sued DWR 

regarding water operations in the Delta.  Cortopassi has already expended $3 million in 

collecting signatures and mounting a campaign. 

Stefanie also mentioned that the Contractors will be soliciting support from DWR 

to join with the Contractors in the complaint that has been filed with the State Water Resources 

Control Board regarding illegal diversions from the Delta.  Apparently it has become 

increasingly clear to DWR that it should also step in and take a position in that matter. 

There will be no State Water Contractors meeting in August.  In September there 

will be a workshop on “California WaterFix” which is the new name for the water supply portion 

of the project formerly known as the Bay Delta Conservation Plan.  Comments on the 

recirculated environmental document prepared for that plan are due by August 31.  The 

Contractors are preparing comments which they hope will help strengthen the document. 

Stefanie also reported having met with DWR to discuss how DWR’s water 

reliability reports can be structured so as to be more helpful to Contractors, in the future, in the 

preparation of their urban water management plans.  A workshop will be conducted at Castaic 

Lake Water Agency on August 6th to discuss the preparation of urban water management plans 

in view of the reliability report recently issued by DWR. 

 

 



 

 
- 3 - 

01358.00002\12544356.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

4. Energy Objectives Update. 

SWC Assistant General Manager Tim Haines provided a report on energy 

objectives that had been identified for the year.  One of the important objectives was to monitor 

legislation that was being developed to address achievement of greenhouse gas emission 

reduction objectives after the year 2020.  The State Water Project has already achieved the 

objectives established for the year 2020, as 65% of the energy consumed in operating the Project 

is greenhouse gas “free.”  The State of California has decided to become the leader in arresting 

global climate change, and the State Water Project has been identified as a vehicle for achieving 

objectives, since the State Water Project consumes so much energy. 

Governor Brown has issued an Executive Order to reduce carbon emissions by 

40% by the year 2030.  The greatest source of carbon emissions is from 27 million vehicles in 

California.  According to Tim, 100,000 of these 27 million vehicles are electric powered 

vehicles.  In order to achieve the 40% reduction by 2030, the State will need to replace six 

million gas powered vehicles with electric powered vehicles.  The likely incentive for effecting 

that change is to dramatically increase the price of gasoline in California.  Conversion to electric 

powered vehicles will also require the construction of new infrastructure to deliver electric 

power to the vehicles.  That infrastructure currently is not in place, and will need to be funded. 

In his report, Tim also noted that efforts are under way to try and rehabilitate the 

Salton Sea, and that one of the means identified to produce the funding for that project is to 

produce geothermal electricity at the Salton Sea, at significant expense, and then require the 

State Water Project to purchase high priced power from that source. 

5. 2016 Statement of Charges. 

The proposed Statement of Charges for 2016 is being developed.  The total 

amount to be invoiced to the Contractors in 2016 is projected to be $29 million greater than it 

was last year, with the largest increase occurring in the Delta Conservation Charge component.  

Most of this increase results from compliance costs, including the purchase and rehabilitation of 

8,000 acres of tidal habitat as a mitigation requirement imposed by biological opinions issued for 

endangered fish.  In order to satisfy that requirement, DWR will need to acquire significant 

properties in the Delta over the next two years.  A significant increase in the Delta Conservation 



 

 
- 4 - 

01358.00002\12544356.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

Charge will dramatically increase the cost of water for agricultural Contractors located north of 

the Tehachapi Mountains.  For Contractors located south of the Tehachapi Mountains, the Delta 

Conservation Charge constitutes a relatively smaller portion of the total bill, and that increase 

will be offset somewhat by projected decreases in transportation charges resulting from lower 

power costs.  

MICHAEL T. RIDDELL 











7/16/2015

1

ENERGY OBJECTIVES UPDATE 

STATE WATER CONTRACTORS 
BOARD MEETING

JULY 16,  2015

From February Report to Board - Policy 
Issues for Board to Monitor Going 
Forward

Post-2020 Legislation and Regulation [Establish Energy Steering 
Committee & Reconvene the Risk Oversight Committee]

BDCP Construction and Permanent Interconnection and Power 
Supply [BDCP Design and Construction Enterprise hired consultant 
introduced by SWC]

Operational Limits of SWP and Future Market Opportunities 
[Steering Committee & ROC]

Transmission Service and Power Supply Diversity [No Progress]

JAN 22 & 23, 2015 2

Agenda Item 8



7/16/2015

2

SWP Resources in 2015
~ 65 percent GHG free

Market Purchases
30%

Renewables
5%

Advanced Natural Gas
5%

Hydro Purchase
5%

SWP Hydro, 55%

Market Purchases Renewables Advanced Natural Gas Hydro Purchase SWP Hydro

37/16/2015

Challenge 1: Why coordinated 
engagement in needed

OCTOBER 16, 2014F

Cost of SWP Energy Supply

• The consequence of 
new Laws and 
Regulations
• AB 1890 – 1996

• AB 32 – 2006

• Operational 
restrictions under 
Endangered Species 
Act



7/16/2015

3

Challenge 2: When to 
Engage

OCTOBER 16, 2014F

• EO B-30-15
• 50% Renewables
• 50% reduction in 

transportation fuel
• Double Energy Efficiency

• SB 350 (same as EO)
• SB 32 

• 40% Reduction in GHG by 
2030

• 80% by 2050

• AB 197

• Salton Sea 
Restoration

• Energy Principles

Challenge 3: Technical Assessment of SWP 
Capabilities

OCTOBER 16, 2014F

• Near Term – Limited to type of data and graphics included in this 
presentation.

• Longer-Term



7/16/2015

4

Challenge 4: What Can be 
Achieved by Engaging

OCTOBER 16, 2014F

• Problems
• Overgeneration
• Ramping

• Solutions
• Regional 

Coordination
• Demand Response
• Storage

Challenge 5: Develop an 
Advocacy Work Plan

OCTOBER 16, 2014F

Advocacy Work Plan consists of five major components

• Outreach (to SWC members, Policy Leaders, Key 
Customers/Constituents, Media

• Education – Historical and current role; site visit

• Enlistment – Coalition including SWC members, DWR, local 
governments, customer groups

• Engagement – legislature, regulators, [environmental groups, NGO]

• Influence – to mitigate threats and capitalize on opportunities



7/16/2015

5

Goals and Objectives
OBJECTIVE DESCRIPTION Metric

Strategic Plan to develop a more cost 

effective power supply

Coordinate with DWR on  Near-Term (up 

to 5 years) and Long-Term (up to 20 

years) Resource Plan

1. Maximum Value and Minimize Costs 

2. Update IRP

Identify and Address Near-term Energy 

Risk

Coordinate with DWR on Power 

Resource, Transmission Service, Staffing 

and State Energy Policy Issues

1. Assess Market Opportunities and 

Operational Limits

2. Analyze DWR Management Reports

Seek Greenhouse Gas /

Renewables Policies that are 

Compatible with SWP Operations 

Work with DWR on appropriate 

greenhouse gas and renewable policies 

that reflect SWP utility characteristics 

and rate concerns

1. Mitigate Cap-and-Trade Costs

2. Acquire Competitive Renewables

3. Get message out on project impacts

Obtain a new FERC Relicense that 

retains the value of Oroville & SoCal 

Facilities and complies with 

environmental regulations

Oroville Water Quality Certification 1. Obtain new FERC license for Lake 

Oroville

2. Obtain agreement on Habitat 

Expansion Plan

3/20/2014 9


































































































































































	Agenda 08 18 15 Board Agenda
	Item 2 07 21 15 Board Minutes
	2
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 08 18 15 GM Report
	AUGUST 18, 2015

	Item 4 08 07 15 Exec Cmttee Minutes
	Item 6A 08 18 15 ACWA Region 9 Board Ballot Staff report
	Item 6B 08 18 15 Support Nomin Tiegs ACWA StaffReport
	Item 6C 08 18 15 Prop 84 Round 3 MOU Staff Report
	Item 6D 08 18 15 ACWA Region 9 Event
	Item 7A 08 18 15 July 2015 Water Use Reduction Figures Staff Report
	Item 7B SWC_ MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF JULY 16 2015 BOARD MEETING (DESERT)-c2
	ADPEADF.tmp
	UMEMORANDUM
	1. UWater Operations Report.
	5. U2016 Statement of Charges.


	Item 8A 08 18 15 PI Media
	Item 8B 08 18 15 PI Activities

	Clear Form: 
	Slate or individual: Off
	G Patrick ODowd Board Member Coachella Valley Water District Arid: Off
	candidates for Vice chair choose one: Off
	check box 1: Off
	check box 2: Off
	check box 3: Off
	check box 4: Off
	check box 5: Off
	check box 6: Off
	check box 7: Off
	AgeNC Y NA me: 
	authorized: 
	dAT e: 
	submit: 


